Public Document Pack

Scottish

PENSION FUND COMMITTEE AND

Borders PENSION BOARD

COUNCIL THURSDAY, 15 SEPTEMBER, 2016

A MEETING of the PENSION FUND COMMITTEE AND PENSION BOARD will be held in the

COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNCIL HEADQUARTERS' on THURSDAY, 15 SEPTEMBER 2016 at

10.30 am.

Please note Pension Fund Committee and Pension Board training will commence at 9.30 am.

J. J. WILKINSON,
Clerk to the Council,

8 September 2016

BUSINESS

Apologies for Absence

2. Order of Business

3. Declarations of Interest

4. Minute (Pages 5 - 10) 2 mins
Minute of Meeting held on 16 June 2016 to be noted and signed by the
Chairman. (Copy attached).

5. Strategic Investment Review (Pages 11 - 38) 40 mins
Consider report by Chief Financial Officer. (Copy attached).

6. Admission Agreement 15 mins
Consider report by Chief Officer Human Resources. (To Follow).

7. Risk Register Update (Pages 39 - 54) 10 mins
Consider report by Chief Financial Officer. (Copy attached).

8. Annual Accounts Update 10 mins
Consider verbal update by Chief Financial Officer.

9. Training Update 5 mins
Consider verbal update by Chief Financial Officer.

10. Scheme Advisory Update 10 mins




(@) Annual Report (Pages 55 -

68)
Copy attached.
(b)  June Bulletin (Pages 69 -
70)
Copy attached.
11. Public Service Pension Act 2013 - Governance Review Consultation 10 mins
(Pages 71 - 76)
To consider draft Terms of Reference (Copy attached).
12. Any Other Items Previously Circulated
13. Any Other Items which the Chairman Decides are Urgent
14. Items Likely To Be Taken In Private
Before proceeding with the private business, the following motion should be
approved:-
“That und Section 50A(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 the
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in paragraph 8 of Part 1 of Schedule 7A to the aforementioned Act.”
15. Minute (Pages 77 - 80) 2 mins
Private Section of Minute of Meeting held on 16 June to be noted and signed
by the Chairman. (Copy attached).
16. Pension Fund Appointment Sub-Group (Pages 81 - 82) 2 mins
Private Minute from Pension Fund Appointment Sub-Group on 16 June 2016
to be noted, (Copy attached).
17. Pension Fund Investment Performance Sub-Committee 2 mins
(@)  Private Minute of 24 August 2015 (Pages 83 -
86)
To note the minute. (Copy attached).
(b)  Private Minute of 22 February 2016 (Pages 87 -
92)
To note the minute. (Copy attached).
(c)  Private Minute of 22 August 2016 (Pages 93 -
98)
To consider minute. (Copy attached).
18. Quarter Performance Update (Pages 99 - 138) 30 mins
Consider report by KPMG. (Copy attached).
19. Custodian Procurement (Pages 139 - 142) 15 mins

Consider report by Chief Financial Officer. (Copy attached).




NOTES

1. Timings given above are only indicative and not intended to inhibit Members’
discussions.

2. Members are reminded that, if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any
item of business coming before the meeting, that interest should be declared prior to
commencement of discussion on that item. Such declaration will be recorded in the
Minute of the meeting.

Membership of Committee:- Councillors B White (Chairman), J. Campbell, M. J. Cook, G. Edgar,
G. Logan, J. G. Mitchell, S. Mountford, S. Aitchison, Mr E Barclay, Mr M Drysdale, Mr C Hogarth,
Ms L Ross, Mr P Smith and Ms C Stewart

Please direct any enquiries to Judith Turnbull Tel No. 01835 826556
Email: judith.turnbull@scotborders.gov.uk




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
PENSION FUND COMMITTEE & PENSION BOARD

MINUTE of Meeting of the PENSION FUND
COMMITTEE AND PENSION BOARD held
in the Waverley Room, Transport
Interchange, Galashiels on Thursday, 16
June, 2016 at 10.00 am

Present:- Councillors B White (Chairman), S Aitchison, M J Cook, G Edgar, G Logan,

J Mitchell, S Mountford, Mr M Drysdale, Ms L Ross.

Apologies:- Councillor J Campbell, Ms C Stewart, Mr C Hogarth and Mr P Smith
In Attendance:- Chief Financial Officer, HR Shared Services Manager, Treasury & Capital

3.2

Manager, Mr C Brunton-Smith, Mr D O’Hara (KPMG), Democratic Services
Officer (J Turnbull).

ORDER OF BUSINESS
The Chairman varied the order of business as shown on the agenda and the Minute
reflects the order in which the items were considered at the meeting.

MINUTE
There had been circulated copies of the Minute of the Meeting of 23 March 2016.

DECISION
NOTED for signature by the Chairman.

KPMG

The Chairman welcomed Mr David O’Hara and Mr Calum Brunton-Smith from KPMG,
who had been appointed Investment Advisors to Scottish Borders Council’'s Pension
Fund. Mr O’Hara and Mr Brunton-Smith thanked Members for their appointment. They
advised that they both had many years of experience in the investment market managing
risks. Their clients including Strathclyde and Lothian Local Government Pension Funds
(LGPS), as well as private clients. They considered that the structure of the Scottish
Borders Council’s Pension Fund had performed well and they would provide guidance to
ensure that the Fund continued to evolve to reflect current market conditions.

In response to a question regarding the pooling of pension fund assets, Mr O’Hara
advised that reform of LGPS was taking place in England and Wales to stimulate
investment in infrastructure projects. KPMG would support and advise on this issue going
forward. Mr Robertson added one of the reasons for the pooling of pension fund
resources was that in England and Wales the funding levels tended to be much lower, in
some cases 60 — 70%; the Scottish Borders Fund was 101%. Scottish Funds recognised
the political drive to pool assets and invest in infrastructure projects and representatives
had met to discuss joint investment opportunities. However, this should only be
considered if there were lower fees and the ability to maximise returns for the Fund.
Officers were presently exploring opportunities with other Scottish LGPS funds, for joint
investments in infrastructure, but this would, it was thought, be on a voluntary, not a
pooled basis. Mr Robertson emphasised that it would ultimately be for the Committee and
Board to decide whether to pursue any collaboration projects and he would continue to
update Members at meetings.

DECISION
NOTED the report.

Page 5



4.2

5.2

MEMBER
Councillor Aitchison joined the meeting during consideration of the above report.

TRAINING PLAN 2016/17

There had been circulated a report by Chief Financial Officer comparing the actual
2015/16 attendance for Pension Fund Committee and Board Members to the
requirements detailed in the current Training Policy approved in June 2015 and proposing
key areas of training for 2016/17, in-line with the policy and based on the Skills
Knowledge assessment recently undertaken. In June 2015 the Pension Fund Committee
and Board agreed an updated Training Policy which reflected the revised governance
structure. A copy of the revised policy was contained in Appendix 1 to the report. In line
with this Policy, the Pension Fund agreed to undertake an annual knowledge and skills
self-assessment which would identify the key areas for the future years’ training plan. The
Training Knowledge and Skills Assessment had been undertaken in April and was
summarised in Appendix 2 of the report. The proposed Training areas for 2016/17 were
detailed for approval and Members were strongly encouraged to actively participate in all
training events to demonstrate their commitment to building the knowledge to support
effective decision making.

Mrs Robb advised that the target was for Members of the Pension Fund Committee and
Pension Board to attend at least two training sessions each year. All Members of the
Pension Fund Committee had fully met the training requirement. However, the training
requirement had not been met by Members of the Pension Board, in part due to changes
of membership to the Board. Mrs Robb further advised that Members would be invited to
attend an event in September covering various areas including the Role of Custodian,
information would be circulated when received. Baillie Gifford were also hosting a
Seminar on 5 and 6 October. There would also be a further event — ‘Generating Growth
for Your Fund’ on 27 and 28 October (two half days) in Edinburgh, details would be
circulated to Members. Mrs Robb would also investigate holding a drop-in session on use
of the online toolkit.

DECISION

(a) AGREED to approve the Training areas for 2016/17 set out in para 6.1 of the
report and that all Members should prioritise attendance at training events
whenever practicable.

(b) NOTED the outcome of the Knowledge and Skills Self-Assessment.

PENSION ADMINISTRATION PERFORMANCE 2015/16

There had been circulated a report by Chief Officer Human Resources presenting the
Pensions Administration Performance for 2015/16 and requesting the Committee’s
approval for its inclusion in the Annual Report for the Fund. Appendix 1 to the report,
contained the Pensions Administration Performance for 2015/16 as it would be included in
the Fund’s Annual Report and Accounts. During 2015/16 there was a decrease in the
number of payments being received late when compared to 2014/15 with only one late
payment being made by Scottish Borders Housing Association. Performance in general
had improved when compared to last year, particularly with the issuing of benefit
statements in August rather than late October and estimates provided being on a par with
the previous reporting year. There had been another successful Employer Liaison
Meeting held during 2015/16 and agreement reached that this would be a useful event to
hold on an annual basis, which would be scheduled in due course.

Mr Angus, HR Shared Services Manager, was in attendance and in answer to questions
advised that with regard to auto-enrolment the majority of members had elected to remain
in the Fund. There had also been an increase in active members due to the Unions
promoting the benefits of LGPS. He further advised that primarily transfers out of the
Fund had been to other local authority pension schemes.

Page 6



7.2

8.1

DECISION

(a) AGREED the inclusion of the Pension Administration Performance for
2015/16 in the Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2015/16.

(b) NOTED the Pension Administration Performance for 2015/16 as set out in
Appendix 1 to the report.

GOVERNANCE POLICY AND COMPLIANCE STATEMENT 2016

There had been circulated a report by Chief Financial Officer proposing the revised
Governance Policy and Compliance Statement for the Scottish Borders Council Pension
Fund (the Pension Fund) following implementation of the 2015 regulatory changes. The
report also requested approval of the Governance Compliance Statement for inclusion in
the Pension Fund’s Annual Report and Accounts 2015/16. Appendix 1 to the report
contained the revised Governance Policy and Compliance Statement for the Pension
Fund. The Governance Compliance Statement was included in Appendix 1 to the policy
and demonstrated that the Pension Fund was in full compliance with the best practice
guidance. Mrs Robb highlighted that the main change to the Statement was the
appointment of KPMG as Investment Advisor to the Pension Fund and the removal of the
performance services provided by WM Company.

DECISION

AGREED the revised Governance Policy and Compliance Statement 2016 and the
Governance Compliance Statement for inclusion in the Pension Fund Annual
Report and Accounts 2015/16.

BUSINESS PLAN 2016/17 - 2018/19

There had been circulated a report by Chief Financial Officer proposing the Pension Fund
Business Plan 2016/17 — 2018/19. Best practice suggested that having a business plan
for the Pension Fund was a good way of demonstrating compliance with the “Myners
Principle” relating to effective decision making. Appendix 1, to the report, contained the
first Pension Fund Business Plan, covering the period 2016/17 — 2018/19. The Business
Plan identified an Action Plan that would be delivered during the next three years to
support the aims and objectives of the Pension Fund.

Mrs Robb highlighted the appointment of KPMG as Investment Advisor to the Fund and
that the procurement of Custodian was progressing. These appointments ensured that
external services provided to the Fund represented best value. In answer to a question
regarding social responsible investment, Mrs Robb advised that officers were developing
a policy which would be presented to the Committee and Board for discussion. Mr Angus
added that online Self-Service would be available later this year or early next year. This
would enable Fund members to access their pension information, obtain projections and
ensure the accuracy of Pension Records.

DECISION
AGREED the Pension Fund Business Plan 2016/17 — 2018/19 as set out in Appendix
1 to the report.

RISK REGISTER UPDATE

There had been circulated a report by Chief Financial Officer which formed part of the risk
review requirements and provided Members of the Pension Fund Committee and Pension
Board with an updated full register and proposed management actions to mitigate risks.
Identifying and managing risk was a corner stone of effective management and was
required under the Council’s Risk Management Policy and process guide under CIPFA’s
guidance “Delivering Governance in Local Government Framework 2007”. It was further
reflected and enhanced in the ‘Local Government Pension Scheme’ published by CIPFA.
A full risk workshop had been held on 30 May 2016 with officers from relevant

Page 7



8.2

9.2

10.
10.1

departments reviewing and updating the full risk register. The output of this was shown in
Appendix 1 to the report. In line with the Council’s Risk Management Policy (2015) a
paper, to be presented at the September 2016 meeting, would report progress on
management actions and present any new risks for consideration.

Following discussion on the residual red risks, Mrs Robb advised that Risk was being
managed by participation in CIPFA and the Scottish Pension Network, this allowed
changes and impacts to be identified quickly. Additional actions proposed included the
input of legislative changes through active membership of COSLA and investigating joint
investment opportunities with other LGPS funds. With regard to Risk 4.1, Mr Robertson
stated that prior to a request for ERVS being considered by Council it had been through a
rigorous process to ensure that the needs of the Council continued to be met. An
additional action proposed in the Risk Register to monitor early retiral decisions, was that
the impact on the Pension Fund be included as part of the Council report and this was
welcomed by Members.

DECISION
AGREED:-

(a) The updated Full Risk register as contained in Appendix 1 to the report; and

(b) To update on progress of management actions to be presented in
September 2016.

DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT (INCLUDING ANNUAL ACCOUNTS)

There had been circulated a report by Chief Financial Officer presenting the Draft Annual
Report and Accounts for the Pension Fund 2015/16 as part of the consultation process
prior to submission of the Report to the Audit Committee and the External Auditors. The
Local Government Pension Scheme Amendment (Scotland) Regulations specified
elements which must be contained in para 4.1. The draft Report and Accounts contained
in Appendix 1 to the report, fully met those requirements. The draft Report and Accounts
were still subject to Audit, which would commence early July. Following Audit sign-off, the
final Report and Accounts would be circulated to the joint Committee and Board.

Mrs Robb referred to the overview of the Fund membership which showed that in 2016
the current membership was 10,259 of which 4,594 were actively contributing and 3,157
were in receipt of pension benefits. There had also been an increase in the Admitted
Bodies with the addition of SBCares. The closing net asset as at 31 March 2016 was
£542,260,000. Mrs Robb advised that officers were working with KPMG and the
Custodian on taxation and actively pursuing outstanding tax refunds.

DECISION

AGREED the Pension Fund Annual Reporting and Accounts 2015/16 contained in
Appendix 1, with minor amendments, prior to the submission to Audit and Risk
Committee on 28 June 2016 and the subsequent statutory audit process.

CUSTODIAN PROCUREMENT

There had been circulated a report by Chief Financial Officer providing the Committee and
Board with an update on the procurement for the Pension Funds Custodian. Identified
within the Business Plan approved at Committee on 16 June 2016 was the requirement to
undertake a tender process for Custodian services. It was also previously approved on
10 December 2015 that the procurement would be undertaken using the Norfolk
Framework. A review of the current services provided by the current custodian JP
Morgan against the requirements from both an asset security and accounting perspective
was undertaken which highlighted the requirement to expand the services to be procured.
This would include Performance monitoring information previously provided by WM
Performance Services. Officers would work with Members of the Pension Fund

Page 8



10.2

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Appointment Sub Group to evaluate the tenders and agree a recommendation to the
September 2016 Joint Pension Fund Committee and Pension Board.

In response to a question, Mrs Robb confirmed that there would be an increased cost for
the additional Investment Accounting service. The Capital and Investment Team
currently undertook the work required and this was proving more challenging each year
and the risk of error was increasing. Consequently, there was considered a requirement
to source accounting and performance services as part of the procurement of a new
Custodian. The final costs would be reported to the Committee and Board at the
September meeting.

DECISION:-

(a) AGREED the revised services to be procured.

(b) NOTED:-
(i) the timetable for the procurement as detailed in para 4.3 of the report;
and
(i) A further report and update would be provided at the September
meeting.

ITEMS LIKELY TO BE TAKEN IN PRIVATE

AGREED under Section 50A(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 to exclude
the public from the meeting during consideration of the business contained in the following
items on the ground that they involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in paragraphs 6 and 8 of the part 1 of Schedule 7A to the Act.

MINUTE
The Committee noted the Private Minute of the meeting of 23 March 2016.

The meeting was adjourned at 11.35 am and reconvened at 11.45 am.

TIMETABLE FOR INVESTMENT STRATEGY REVIEW (ASSET ALLOCATION)
The Committee noted a report by KPMG.

INVESTMENT REPORT - QUARTER TO 31 MARCH 2016
The Committee noted a report by KPMG.

INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENTS
The Committee noted a report by Chief Financial Officer.

URGENT BUSINESS

Under Section 50B(4)(b) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, the Chairman was
of the opinion that the item dealt with in the following paragraph should be considered at
the meeting as a matter of urgency, in view of the need to keep Members informed.

CURRENCY HEDGE
The Committee noted a report by Chief Financial Officer.

The meeting concluded at 1.15 pm

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



SCOttish Agenda Item 5

Borders
COUNCIL

STRATEGIC INVESTMENT REVIEW

Report by Chief Financial Officer

JOINT MEETING OF PENSION FUND COMMITTEE AND
PENSION FUND BOARD

15 September 2016

1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY

1.1 The report provides the Committee and Board with an update on
the outcome of the Strategic Investment Review and presents the
resulting recommendations for the revised asset allocation.

1.2 The Investment strategy is a key to ensuring assets continue to grow to
meet the long term liabilities of the fund and that as far as possible the
contribution rates from employers remain stable.

1.3 A review of the current strategy has been undertaken by KMPG and the
findings are detailed in Appendix 1. Para 5.2 details the recommended
revised asset allocation.

1.4 As part of the review the currency hedge arrangement was also reviewed

and the findings are detailed in Appendix 2. The removal of the currency
hedge is now recommended.

2 STATUS OF REPORT

2.1  Due to the timing of the finalisation of this report consultation comments
will be reported verbally at the meeting.

3 RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 Itis recommend that the Joint Pension Fund Committee and
Pension Fund Board:-

(a) Agree the investment strategy as detailed in para 5.2;

(b) Agree the removal of the Currency Hedge;

(c) Delegate authority to the Chief Financial Officer, in
agreement with the Chair of the Pension Fund Committee,

and based on advice of the Investment Advisor to implement
the revised investment strategy; and,

Joint Pension Fund Committee and Pension FundP8&ed) X5 September 2016 1



(d) Delegate authority to the Chief Financial Officer, in
agreement with the Chair of the Pension Fund Committee,
and based on advice of the Investment Advisor the removal
of the currency hedge at the most appropriate time.

Joint Pension Fund Committee and Pension Fundf@8Ri 125 September 2016



4 BACKGROUND

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

The Pension Fund is required by the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) Regulations to have an up-to-date Statement of Investment
Principles (SIP). A key part of the SIP is the strategic asset allocation
which sets the allocation of investments across the different asset classes.

The Funds primary aim is “To provide for members’ pension and lump sum
benefits on their retirement or for their dependants’ benefits on death
before or after retirement, on a defined benefits basis”. To meet this aim
the Fund must ensure it sets levels of contributions that will build up a fund
of assets sufficient to meet all future benefit payments.

The Fund while setting the contributions rates aims to ensure the rates
payable by employers are as stable as possible. To reduce the volatility of
rates the Fund must ensure there is stability and the required level of
returns from the investments.

The last review of the strategic asset allocation was undertaken in
December 2013 following the 2011 tri-annual revaluation. The outcome of
this was incorporated into the current SIP and was fully implemented.

On 18 June 2015 following the appointment of a new Investment Advisor
KPMG the Committee approved that a full strategic review should be
undertaken to determine the future strategic asset allocation.

5 STRATEGIC REVIEW

5.1

5.2

KPMG has undertaken a full review of the current investments within
the fund and found the Fund has performed well over the last 5 years
with returns above the required levels. The fund however is heavily
exposed to both Global and UK equities, which although they have
performed well in the past and could do in the future, have no direct
link to the increasing liabilities arising through inflation, interest rates
and changing member demographics.

Appendix 1 details the full findings of the review and the table below
details the resulting recommended changes to the asset allocation:

Asset Group Current Recommend Move-
Position Position ment
Equities 65% 50% (15%)
Diversified Alternatives 15% 10% (5%)
Balance Property 5% 5% -
Long Lease Property - 10% 10%
Private Credit 10.5% 10% (0.5%)
Corporate Bonds 2.25% - (2.25%)
Fixed Income Gilts 2.25% - (2.25%)
Index Linked Gilts 5% 5.0%

Joint Pension Fund Committee and Pension Fund’B&@d) 35 September 2016 3



5.3 The transition to the recommended revised strategy will take time and
require disinvestment of some funds and the establishment of some
new funds. It is proposed this is done on a phased based as detailed in
Appendix 1, using existing Managers where possible to minimise the
cost of transition. The timescales for moving to the new strategy is
estimated at this point to be around 12-18 months and any revision to
this timescale will be reported to committee.

5.4  The currency hedge was also reviewed as in conjunction with the
strategy. Appendix 2 details the work undertaken and the
recommendation to cease the current hedge. The timing of withdrawal
from the hedge will need to be managed to ensure any potential loss is
minimised.

6 IMPLICATIONS

6.1 Financial

(a) The revised asset allocation will require the establishment of new
portfolios within the Fund. To minimise the costs of procurement
Officers in conjunction with the Investment Advisor will investigate
the use of existing Managers where possible.

(b) The timing of the disinvestment and unwinding of the currency hedge
could result in losses for the Fund. To ensure any loss is minimized
Officers in conjunction with the Investment Advisor will plan the
timing of movements and will utilise the services of the existing
Transition Manager, State Street.

6.2 Risk and Mitigations

(a) The Fund is becoming more mature as the number of deferred and
retired members now exceeds higher than those currently
contributing. This will result in the negative cashflow as the monthly
payments to Pensioners will be greater than the contributions
collected. The Fund will in future need to generate more liquid cash
in order to pay pensioners and the current arrangements, whereby
dividends are directly reinvested back into the portfolios. may
require to be reviewed with some element of this income returned
the Fund to allow payment of pensioners.

(b) The terms of the scheme allow for annual CPI inflation increases in
pension payments. There is a risk that this may result in increased
liabilities which outstrip any growth in investments. To mitigate this
risk the investments require to be diversified into areas which match
the liability growth rate.

(c) The recent "Bretix” vote has had significant impact on the markets
and as the details of the break from EU continue to emerge there will
be further uncertainty. This uncertainty is likely to have an impact
on the valuation of the liabilities during the 2017 tri-annual valuation.

(d) Discussions are currently underway with the actuary Barnett
Waddingham, in advance of the 2017 valuation to assess the impact
of Brexit and the proposed impact of the revised asset allocation
strategy on the net liability position of the Fund and the overall
funding level.

Joint Pension Fund Committee and Pension Fundf@@@i 145 September 2016 4



6.3 Equalities

An Equalities Impact Assessment has been carried out on this proposal and
it is anticipated that there are no adverse equality implications.

6.4 Acting Sustainably

There are no direct economic, social or environmental issues with this
reports which would affect the Council’s sustainability

6.5 Carbon Management
There are no direct carbon emissions impacts as a result of this report.

6.6 Rural Proofing

It is anticipated there will be no adverse impact on the rural area from the
proposals contained in this report.

6.7 Changes to Scheme of Administration or Scheme of Delegation
No changes are required as a result of this report.

7 CONSULTATION
7.1 The Monitoring Officer, the Chief Legal Officer, the Chief Officer Audit and

Risk, the Chief Officer HR and the Clerk to the Council have been consulted
and any comments will be given at the meeting.

Approved by

Name

Title Sighature .......ccvciviimirirn i na s
Author(s)

Name Designation and Contact Number

Kirsty Robb Capital and Investment Manager, 01835 825249

Background Papers
Previous Minute Reference: Pension Fund Committee and Pension Fund Board, 16
June 2016

Note - You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various
computer formats by contacting the address below. The Capital and Investment
Team can also give information on other language translations as well as providing
additional copies.

Contact us at Contact us at: Treasury & Capital Team, Council Headquarters,
Newtown St Boswells, Melrose, TD6 OSA Tel: 01835 825016 Fax 01835 825166.
email: treasuryteam@scotborders.gov.uk

Joint Pension Fund Committee and Pension FundPB&@d) 35 September 2016 5



mailto:treasuryteam@scotborders.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



SooltshBoioers | f
S0UNCIPENSion =
-Und T

Investment Strategy Review — Discussion Summary

C

-

August, 2016




Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund

pauction

The contacts at KPMG
in connection with this
report are:

David O’Hara
Director

Investment Advisory
Tel: 0141 300 5533

david

Q
D

= .
Calugo Brunton Smith
Principal consultant

ara@kpmg.co.uk

Investment Advisory
Tel: 0141 300 5629
calum.bruntonsmith@KPMG.co.uk

Addressee

This report is addressed to Scottish Borders Council as administering authority of
the Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund (“the Fund”). This paper summarises
the Pension Fund Investment & Performance Sub-Committee’s (the “ISC")
discussions on the existing investment arrangements at the Committee meeting
on 22 August 2016 and sets out the proposed strategy moving forward.

Background

The Council has an explicit objective to maintain a strong funding position and
ensure that sponsoring employer contributions are as stable as possible.

Having considered the risks inherent within the Fund’s existing investment
strategy and market conditions post-Brexit, the ISC propose to refine the existing
investment strategy to reduce downside risk, whilst broadly maintaining the level
of expected return. Some upside risk is sacrificed to achieve this.

The ISC agreed that the existing equity exposure (c. 65% of the Fund assets)
remained a significant risk position. Given the significant rally in equity markets
over recent years and, in particular, over the period since Brexit, the ISC agreed
that "banking’ some of this gain would be sensible at this point in favour of more
secure ‘contractual’ income and assets with direct inflation linkage, reflecting the
risk/nature of the Fund'’s liabilities.

Having considered a range of alternative investment structures, the ISC proposed
to review the existing strategic asset allocation to take 15% out of equities and
5% out of diversified alternatives in favour of long lease property and private
credit and to reshape the bond portfolio. The charts opposite illustrate the
proposed changes to the strategy. The ISC wishes to implement this in a phased
manner.

The ISC also recommends that an element of delegation is provided to the
Officers (within appropriate control ranges) to make changes to the asset
allocation. The ISC also proposes to wind down the currency hedge in a phased
manner based on KPMG's advice (see separate report).

This short paper summarises the proposed changes to the Fund’s investment
strategy and sets out the next steps to implement the revised strategy.

Current Asset Allocation
(Benchmark Weights)

Corporate Bonds,

5959 Gilts, 2.25%

Diversifed Credit,
10.5%

Balanced
Property,
5.0%

Diversified
Alternatives,
15.0%
Global Equity
(inc. UK), 65.0%

Proposed (Revised) Asset Allocation

Index-linked Gilts,
5%

Private Credit,
10%

Diversified Credit,
10%

Global Equities
(inc. UK), 50%

Long Lease
Property, 10%

Balanced

Property, 5% ‘

Diversified
Alternatives, 10%

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund

burren -[B0d

Asset allocation — Current benchmark

Corporate Bonds,

2.25% Gilts, 2.25%
.25%

Diversifed Credit,
10.5%

Balanced
Property,
5.0%

Diversified
Alternatives,
15.0%

Global Equity
(inc. UK), 65.0%

-
Bxpected return
«Q

@ Based on KPMG's model assumptions, the current investment strategy has

S an expected return of Gilts + 4.0% p.a. (5.8% p.a. as at 30 June 2016) — this
is a best estimate of the future return. We note that there is very
significant uncertainty around the outcome given the return profile of the
equity exposure.

= The valuation basis (which is required to make a prudent assessment of
future investment return) requires a return of 5.5% per annum based on the
2014 actuarial valuation. At that point, this translated to a return of Gilts +
2%.

— The expected return from the portfolio is only just meeting the
discount rate set in 2014 (=5.5%). If the Actuary were to maintain
this rate then there is no room to let the best estimate return fall
without pushing cash contributions higher.

— In practice, we expect that the Actuary will set a discount rate
somewhere between Gilts+2% (the margin used in 2014) and
Gilts+4%. Confirming the Actuary's view on the approach is critical to
the long-term development of the strategy.

Initial thoughts

= Whilst not atypical for a Local Government Pension Scheme investment
strategy, the strategy can evolve to target a similar return with a significantly
lower level of downside risk, better reflecting the nature of the pension
promises and increasing the contractual income delivered.

= The key changes required to achieve this would include.

Reduce reliance on equities. The Fund retains a reliance on equities for
returns (c. 65% of Fund assets) and within this there is a significant bias
to the UK equity market. We believe the Council should consider
trimming the UK equity allocation.

Exploit crediit opportunities: A well-diversified portfolio of credit
instruments exploiting current opportunities can be constructed to
deliver an "average expected” return similar to that of equities. This
portfolio provides seniority in capital structure together with more certain
income that is increasingly important for the Council.

Earn an llliquidity premiunt. There is a premium available to long term
investors (like pension funds) who are able to tie up capital in
opportunities that are unattractive to banks due to liquidity stress test
requirements. Local authorities are one of the few market participants
able to exploit this. We strongly believe the Fund should consider a
committing capital to long-term investments that provide relative secure
future income flows.

Increase inflation exposure: A higher allocation to inflation linked assets
would provide directional protection against inflation (a key risk for the
Fund). The Fund could consider a range of long-term inflation-linked
assets providing a premium over Gilts (e.g. long lease property,
infrastructure debt etc).

= We believe that an evolution of the existing strategy rather than a revolution is
preferable. These changes outlined above are in line with strategy refinements
being made by our other LGPS clients.

KPMG

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



Allernative Stratedies

Investment strategy

The investment strategy will determine the risk and return profile for the Fund’s
investment. Different strategic splits between asset classes (equity, property,
alternatives, diversified credit, public and private credit, direct lending, gilts, etc)
will give rise to different levels of:

Expected investment growth (return); and

Expected levels of volatility - funding level variation and potential deficit that
might arise (measured here by the Value at Risk! over 3 years). This funding
level volatility will ultimately drive contributions.

The ISC considered different asset allocations to vary the risk profile of the Fund.
In terms of refinements to the current investment strategy, the ISC considered:

Reducing reliance on equity markets and increasing exposure to other
sources of investment returns to increase the overall diversification;

0z afed

Exploit wider credit opportunities with a focus on contractual income;

Increasing exposure to illiquid assets to better reflect the Fund's liquidity
profile and exploit an illiquidity premium; and

Increasing long dated inflation-linked asset exposure to better match the
sensitivity of the Fund’s liabilities.

The ISC also discussed the Fund's investment managers and agreed that some
of the mandates should be reviewed — in particular refinements to the equity
manager line-up and the selection of any new managers required to manage any
new asset classes being introduced. It may be feasible to streamline the
selection process.

The ISC also considered the Fund's currency hedge and agreed that, based on
current market conditions, the currency hedge should be gradually unwound.

1 Value at Risk (“VaR”") represents the increase in expected deficit in at a specified future time (i.e. 3 years)
under a specific percentile (i.e. 95% or 1 in 20) worst investment outcome. Within ALM analysis a common
risk measure used is a 3 year 95% VaR to quantify the level of risk being run.

KkPmG!

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



VE SIralegies

— o

Asset Classes . Current 3(b). 50% Equity

UK and Overseas Equities 65.0% 55.0% 50.0% ! 50.0% 1 45.0%
Diversified Alternatives 15.0% 15.0% 15.0% : 10.0% ! 10.0%
Balanced Property 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% ! 5.0% : 5.0%
Long Lease Property - 5.0% 5.0% : 10.0% | 10.0%
Diversified Credit Opportunities 10.5% 10.0% 10.0% | 10.0% : 10.0%
Private Credit Opportunities - 10.0% 10.0% : 10.0% | 10.0%

Corporate Bonds 2.25% - - : - : -

Fixed Interest Gilts 2.25% - - 1 - : -
Index-linked Gilts - - 5.0% : 5.0% | 10.0%

T¢ abed

Vel at Risk (L in 20 chance) om | om0 | oom o | eziom e

Notes: All analysis based on the 31 March 2014 actuarial valuation. Value at Risk (“VaR") measure represents the increase in expected deficit in 3 years time under t@ 1in 20 (5%) worst investplent outcome. Private credit
opportunities includes: Direct Lending, Semi-liquid credit, etc). ——— ——

Investment strategy
The table above illustrates the Funds current strategy and the four alternative investment strategies the ISC considered as part of the investment review.
Each strategy targets a similar expected return to the current strategy with a lower risk profile, but has a different composition in terms of asset classes utilised.

Following a detailed discussion on the alternative strategies, and the position of current markets, the ISC agreed that strategy 3b was their preferred alternative on the
basis that: expected return could be broadly maintained; the risk profile could be reduced significantly; and the Fund could ‘bank’ some of the equity market gains made
over recent periods in favour of more secure contractual income that better matched the Fund's liability profile.

The ISC agreed that the alternative strategy should be implemented in a phased manner.

KPMG 5

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



ansition summa

Fixed Interest Gilts 2.25% ’

Index-linked Gilts - Index-linked Gilts 5.0%

Value at Risk (1 in 20 chance) £253m Value at Risk (1 in 20 chance) £210m (-17%)
5% worse deficit in 3 years (£198m) 5% worse deficit in 3 years (£163m)

Asset Classes 1. Current Asset Classes 3. 50% Equity

UK and Overseas Equities 65.0% - | UK and Overseas Equities 50.0%

Diversified Alternatives 15.0% ] Diversified Alternatives 10.0%

Balanced Property 5.0% Balanced Property 5.0%

Long Lease Property = —> Long Lease Property 10.0%

Diversified Credit Opportunities 10.5% Diversified Credit Opportunities 10.0%

;,U Private Credit Opportunities - —: Private Credit Opportunities 10.0%
L(% Corporate Bonds 2.25% Corporate Bonds =
B Fixed Interest Gilts -

—>

Asset movements

To implement the revised strategy the following transition of assets will have to occur:
Reduce equity exposure by 15% in favour of Long Lease Property (10%) and Private Credit Opportunities (Direct Lending) (5%);
Reduce diversified alternatives by 5% in favour of Private Credit Opportunities (allocation to be agreed in due course);

Switch the Fund's existing Corporate Bonds (2.25%) and Fixed Interest Gilts (2.25%) allocations into a passive Index-linked Gilt allocation — the balance of this
5% allocation is scheduled to come from the Diversified Credit mandate (0.5%) — in practice, this won’t require a physical change in the asset allocation.

To implement this change, the Council should review; the Fund's existing equity portfolio to agree how this exposure should be reduced. We believe this should
funded from a combination of UBS" UK Portfolio and Harris" Global Portfolio; carry out long lease property and private credit manager selection exercises (it should be
possible to streamline these selection processes). The Council will also have to agree how the index-linked gilts holding would be implemented (there is scope for
this to be invested with the Fund'’s existing managers.)

KPMG 6

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



NEXL SIEPS

Next steps

gz abed

The Committee should consider the ISC's proposal to refine the Fund’s existing
investment strategy.

Should the Committee agree the ISC's proposal, we suggest that the implementation is
delegated to the Officers. The next steps to implement the revised investment strategy
would be:

Review of the Fund's existing equity portfolio. KPMG wiill provide a short equity
portfolio briefing paper reviewing the current portfolio, managers and providing
clear proposal from KPMG on how to implement the reduction in equity exposure.

Carry out a long lease property selection exercise to appoint an investment
manager to manage the Fund’s 10% long lease property allocation.

Review the Fund’s options for implementing the 10% private credit mandate and
select an appropriate manager to manage the preferred strategy. KPMG will provide
a briefing paper setting out our views on the most attractive private credit
opportunities for the council to consider (we believe an allocation to direct lending
should be considered). KPMG will provide advice on the manager selection.

A short report proposing how the currency hedge should be wound down including
the changes required to accommodate the strategic changes (i.e. reduction in
equity exposure) and a clear proposal on how the currency hedge should be
gradually unwound.

Once the strategy has been agreed, the asset transition should be implemented on a
phased basis to ‘average in’ the changing market exposure. The private credit and long
lease property allocation may take time to fund given the nature of these asset classes.

As part of the strategy, we recommend that the Committee investigates options to
increase cashflow generation by drawing income from investment mandates.

Decisions to be taken

Is the Committee happy to refine the existing strategy to implement
the alternative investment strategy proposed by the ISC?

If so, the following steps are required:

Agree how the Fund'’s existing equity portfolio should be refined to
facilitate the 15% equity reduction.

Select a long lease property manager for the Fund

Agree the preferred private credit strategies and select the required
private credit manager(s)

Agree how and when the Fund's currency hedge should be unwound

Agree target timescales for phased implementation

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



KPMG

Append

Al. Portfolio analysis
A2. Investment cases

A3. Risk warnings

Page

11

13



Appendix 1 — Portfolio Analysis

Curen sy}

Current Asset Allocation Expected funding level progression
This page summarises the (Benchmark Weights) (Funding basis)
ALM output on the Fund’s c e Bond 300 ~
orporate Bonds, - giys, 2 25%
current strategy 2.25% Median
Diversifed Credit, UK Equity, 19.0% 200 (50%)
10.5%
IS
Q100 -
Property, = !
5.0% c r !
D 0 L A I There is significant variability in -
o ! ! outcome - the difference in the Bad (20%)
) ! H expected funding position and the
Alternatives, =2 -100 - i t osition under a downside scenario
o 1 1 P
15.0% 5 ! ! (i.e.1in20) is significant.
(@] ! H
-200 4 O
Very Bad
-300 +
) (5%)
Global Equity, Source: KPMG
46.0%
o ’ -400 -
Q 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
% Year
N Summary 3 year 95% Value at Risk (VaR) decomposition
o (Funding basis)
Fundi 450 4
. unding
Key Characteristics .
. - .
. 350 A e S
Expected return (gilts plus) 4.0% ' | 4 v
300 ! .
£ 1
3 year 95% VaR £253m @0 | i :
1 1
Deficit level in 3 years (95% worst outcome) £198m 200 ' :
T T \ I 1
Notes: Calculations based on the 31 March 2014 actuarial valuation, rolled forward to 30 June 150 i ! _f_ ! !
2016, asset valuations as at 30 June 2016 and KPMGs long term modelling assumptions. ! : ' ,'
VaR:  3year 95% Value at Risk represents a the increase in expected deficitin 3 years time under the 1 in 100 ,: P
20 worst investment outcome 1 1
1
50 ,: 1
! |
ol i
: Interest & ! Credit Equity Property Alternatives  Diversification ~ Total VaR
! Inflation | 21 183.7 8.8 53.7 -135.7 253.3
L_1407 _,

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



Appendix 1 — Portfolio Analysis

30 oU% caUIy S

oYy

This page summarises the

Alternative Asset Allocation

Expected funding level progression
(Funding basis)

ALM output on the alternative ) ) 300 ~
. . Index-linked Gilts,
strategy with a reduced equit Private Credt 5% :
qy quity Opportunities, 200 Median
q b 0
portfolio of 50% and a reduced 10% (50%)
diversified alternatives £
i Diversified Credit :‘i 100 _
allocation. Opportunities, 5 f".)
10% = i A
8 : 9
Global Equities , = ! Bad (20%)
50% 4 i
Tg_ -100 - !
Long Lease 5 DY <
;)U Property, 10% n 200 | " k
Q
D
N Balanced -300 - Very Bad
o Property, 5% (5%)
Diversified Source: KPMG
Alternatives, 10% -400 -
0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
Year
Summary 3 year 95% Value at Risk (VaR) decomposition
(Funding basis)
450 +
o Funding
Key Characteristics .
Y Basis 400 -
. 350 -
Expected return (gilts plus) 3.8%
300 - ‘
3 year 95% VaR £210m 8 e0 |
. . \ 4
Deficit level in 3 years (95% worst outcome) £163m 200 +
Notes: Calculations based on the 31 March 2014 actuarial valuation, rolled forward to 30 June 150
2016, asset valuations as at 30 June 2016 and KPMGs long term modelling assumptions.
VaR:  3year 95% Value at Risk represents a the increase in expected deficitin 3 years time under the 1 in 100 4
20 worst investment outcome
50
0 il
Interest & Equity Property Alternatives Diversification Total VaR
Inflation 146.3 18.2 46.3 -127.4 210.5
127.2
KkPMG 10

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential




Appendix 2 — Investment Case

| 0Ng Lease Prope

At a glance:

Expected returns

Return Gilts + 2.0% pa
8% pa

]r..wl....._

Year

Volatility

Indicative Cashflows

u Contractual

= Non-contractual

Dispeision

D v
0% ﬁ 100%
Contractual Contractual
Liquidity
Immediate Medium
Short v Long

Highly Diversified

v Diversified

Concentrated

Long lease property (“LLP") funds are designed to produce secure, long
term, inflation proofed income streams, which are generally attractive to
defined benefit pension schemes.

These funds act as a diversifier in a portfolio as well as providing
contractual income to pension schemes.

A LLP portfolio would focus on a subset of properties expected to display

the following characteristics:
m Long lease lengths, providing some interest rate sensitivity.
m Inflation-linked, rather than fixed income;

= Income streams agreed with new acquisitions are increasingly LPI
rather than RPI linked i.e. with 0% floors and 5% caps. These better
match LPI liabilities and also provide a floor in the case of deflation
(which index-linked gilts do not);

m Potential for additional gain from increases in the value of the
underlying properties;

m Underpin of property value and resumption of rental income should
the tenant default

Investors should note that LLP funds are likely to be outperformed by
most other property funds in normal/prosperous property market
conditions as the bulk of the return will be driven by income and not
capital gains.

KPMG Summary

— We believe that LLP funds offer pension schemes an asset with similar
characteristics to an index-linked corporate bond. This means they are
able to offer some liability matching characteristics but also with some
growth potential.

We view LLP positively in the current market, where income is
expected be the main component of property fund returns over the
medium term.

Return comparison 10years to March 2016

H
N © P
a G o
o o o
o O o

© © ~ ~ @ @ f=] (=23 o o - - N N ™ [} < < n n ©
o o o o (=3 o (=] (=3 b=l — L=} Pl ~ Pl E=l — E=) P=) =y =l b=
i<} (=3 i<} i=1 (=3 i<} i=3 (=} [=} =1 (=} j=} o (=} j=} (=} (=} i=1 o [=} o
3 N N N N N N N N N Y N N N N N N N N N N
8§ & 8 % 8 § 8 § 8 $ 8 $ 8 $ 8 %8 8 g 8
= 0o =2 o =2 0o =2 0 = O = 0 = 0 = o = 0 = 0 =2
ILG > 15 years Gilts Long Lease (example fund) Balanced Property

Key features

Asset Class Property > UK Property

Governance High due to active management

Typical fees 0.4% - 0.6% p.a.

Trading costs

approx. 5.0%

Turnover Low turnover of underlying investments

Lock-ins Typically none but newer funds may have initial

lock-in periods

Availability We currently recommend five investment

managers

Active/Passive Active

Geography UK focused

Past performance

EEROITERERGIEGIA  Quarter 12 Months 3 years 5 Years
— We believe LLP would be suitable for a wide range of pension
schemes and would recommend an allocation of anywhere between 5- Example Fund 1.4% 7.8% 8.9% 8.8%
15%, depending on the individual requirements of the scheme.
m © 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited Ma_b\\\ty partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 11
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



Appendix 2 — Investment Case

Jrectiending

At a glance:

Expected returns

Return Senior / Unitranche:
Libor + 4-7%
Mezzanine: Libor + 7%
to 10%

Volatility ~ 8% - 14%

oMNs 10 15 20 25 30
o) Year

m Contractual = Non-contractual
Dispersion

Indicative Cashflows

v

0% 100%
Contractual Contractual

Liquidity

Immediate Medium

Short v Long

Diversification

Highly Diversified

v Diversified

Concentrated

Direct lending refers to loan investments made directly by a fund
manager on behalf of a fund to a portfolio of borrowers, typically medium
sized businesses. Returns from direct lending originate from coupon
payments, origination fees and penalties in case of amendment to terms
or prepayment of principal.

Traditionally middle market borrowers (with outstanding debt below
£250m) rely on banks to raise capital for refinancing, acquisitions and
restructuring. As banks have reduced lending, institutional investors like
pension schemes have the opportunity to step into the role traditionally
played by banks and capture the attractive returns for providing finance in
private markets.

Key features of direct lending include:

= Senior position in capital structure leads to relative security in event
of default;

= Access to illiquidity premium rewarding the investor for investing in
an asset that cannot readily be sold;

= Customisation and regular monitoring (quarterly) of covenants (terms
& conditions) means greater control to prevent defaults;

= Limitations on issuer activities which are not beneficial to the senior
lenders (e.g. restriction on payment to junior debt holders prior to
senior lenders being paid);

Key risks include:

= Default risk, although direct lending benefits from much better
recovery rates than bond investors.

m  Prepayment risk (capital being returned to investor sooner than
expected), however this is partially mitigated by penalties.

KPMG Summary
The financing gap for Small and Medium Enterprises offers pension

schemes an attractive opportunity to provide financing via pooled funds.
Direct lending across the capital structure provides more attractive risk
adjusted returns compared to the bank loan markets.

Global leveraged loans par amount maturing

Additional demand from refinancing

Global leverage loans par amount maturing in USD bn

100 m Par amount maturing
Expected refinancing activity nr
50
31.6
]
0 |
2016 2017 2018

Source: Partners Group S&P LCD Global Leveraged Loan Review

Key features

Asset Class Bonds>Direct Lending

Medium, standard quarterly monitoring

0.8% to 1.25% p.a.

Governance

Typical fees

EERTIn ERHEREEEIN 8% to 15% subject to return hurdle

Turnover Low

Liquidity None

Fund Life 6 to 10 years

Active/Passive Active

Geography Mixture of regional and global

Past performance

Performance Indicator 2015** 2014 2013 2012

Sample manager 4.2% 4.5% 5.0% 6.0%

*Sample Manager is Partners Group. Performance shown is net IRR as at 29 February 2016.
**The 2015 vintage is still in its investment period.

KPMG

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 12
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.



Appendix 2 — Investment Case

SEMHIcUI Cred

At a glance:

Expected returns

Return Gilts + 3-5% p.a.

Volatility 6% - 10% p.a.

0 5 10 il5 20 25 30

Year

Indicative Cashflows

n Contractual = Non-contractual

Disperzion

0% N 100%
Contract@i Contractual

Immediat |v  Medium
e

Short Long

Highly Diversified

v Diversified

Concentrated

A Semi-Liquid Credit strategy aims to fill the gap in terms of risk, return
and liquidity between the illiquid and liquid credit ideas that pension
schemes typically invest in. Managers will combine relatively liquid asset
classes, such as High Yield, with illiquid asset classes such as Real
Estate Debt. Managers have a high degree of flexibility in terms of
strategies and allocations.

A Semi-Liquid Credit strategy aims to deliver returns normally associated
with High Yield strategies, without taking the same level of credit and
interest rate risk. A Semi-Liquid Credit manager instead aims to achieve
these returns by allocating to less liquid strategies (benefitting from an
illiquidity premium) and to strategies that are less understood by wider
capital markets (benefitting from a complexity premium).

Characteristics that we look for in a Semi-Liquid Credit strategy include:

m  Core holdings of credit and loans plus allocations in asset backed
securities, distressed debt, private credit and hedging strategies

m Little or no fund leverage
m  Lower credit risk than pure High Yield / Loans allocation

m  Low correlation with other major asset classes

KPMG Summary

— We believe that Semi-Liquid Credit offers a diversified portfolio with
holdings across the traditional and non-traditional areas of credit and
looks to generate relatively high risk adjusted returns without relying
solely on credit risk.

— We see Semi-Liquid Credit as an equity alternative for clients unwilling
to bear the illiquidity of our more illiquid ideas, such as Direct Lending
and Real Estate Debt. This may also be suitable for clients who are
looking to extend exposure to illiquid assets.

This strategy can also be seen as a higher risk-return, lower liquidity
option in the diversified credit space.

Example manager asset allocation

Cash
9.5% Loans
19.0%

Real Estate Debt
28.1%
High Yield
15.6%

\ European Financials

0.3%

EM Corporates
US Middle Market Loans 4.6%
4.6% Infrastructure Opportunistic

2.0%  structured Credit 6.6%
9.7%

Key features

Asset Class Bonds

Governance Low, standard quarterly monitoring

0.6% - 0.9% p.a.

Typical fees

Trading costs Fund specific

Turnover High turnover of underlying investments

Quarterly liquidity, some initial annual lock ups

Availability Limited number of pooled funds currently

available

Active/Passive Active

Geography Global

Past performance

Performance Indicator 2015 2014 2013

Example manager performance 2.6% 5.3%* 13.4%*

KPMG

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 13
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.



RISKWarnings

0€ abed

Limitations of modeling

When considering the modeling output for each structure, and in particular the risk measures, the following limitations of modeling
should be noted

This report has been prepared for the sole benefit of Scottish Borders Council and is based on their specific facts and circumstances
and pursuant to the terms of KPMG LLP's Services Contract. It should not be relied upon by any other person. Any person who
chooses to rely on this report does so at their own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP accepts no responsibility or
liability to that party in connection with the Services.

The outcomes illustrated in this report are not intended to be the best possible, or worst possible outcomes. The actual outcome
could be better than the 5th percentile, or worse than the 95th percentile.

The output from our modelling is based on a large number of underlying assumptions. Changes to these assumptions can have a
material impact on the results of the modelling.

The only risk factors we have considered in our modelling are those that affect the values of pension schemes' assets and the
financial assumptions used to value schemes' liabilities. Some of the risks we have not considered include demographic risks such as
the life expectancy of pension schemes' members and future changes to members' benefits.

The work carried out for this exercise is compliant with the applicable Technical Actuarial Standards in force published by the Financial
Reporting Council. In particular the standards for Reporting Actuarial Information, Data, Modelling, and Pensions have been followed
so far as their requirements are material for this work.

14

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



KPMG

Contact us

David O’'Hara Calum Brunton Smith

Director, Investment Advisory Principal, Investment Advisory

T. +44 (0) 141 300 5533 T. +44(0) 141 300 5629

E. david.ohara@kpmg.co.uk E. calum.bruntonsmith@kpmg.co.uk

Wlin|3|o

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



https://www.linkedin.com/company/kpmg-advisory
https://www.linkedin.com/company/kpmg-advisory
https://plus.google.com/111087034030305010189
https://plus.google.com/111087034030305010189
https://twitter.com/kpmguk
https://twitter.com/kpmguk
https://www.youtube.com/user/KPMGUK
https://www.youtube.com/user/KPMGUK
mailto:calum.bruntonsmith@kpmg.co.uk
mailto:david.ohara@kpmg.co.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



uuuuuuuuuuu

/L

~+H+

1SN BOrders

INCl Pension



HOW MUCh Should we hedge?

DRAFT

Empirical evidence indicates
that a hedge level of 50% to
70% is optimal

y¢ abed

How much to hedge?

Empirical studies suggest that a currency hedge of 50% to
70% is the optimal position in reducing the volatility of
overseas equity asset returns over time.

A hedge of 100% would not be expected to deliver the optimal
level of risk reduction given that underlying businesses are
often exposed to overseas currencies — determining the
precise underlying currency exposure of an equity market or
individual stock is not straightforward.

While the optimal hedge ratio ultimately varies according to
prevailing correlations, a 50% hedge is broadly aligned with
the empirical analysis, whilst also offering both a lower cost
and cashflow management burden than higher levels. It is the
position of least regret often adopted by pension funds
seeking to hedge overseas currency risk to reduce volatility of
returns.

The chart opposite illustrates the reduction in volatility in the
MSCI World equity index by hedging back to Sterling - the
majority of the volatility reduction can be achieved by moving
to a 50% hedge.

The empirical evidence indicates that hedging an element of
overseas currency risk will achieve a not insignificant reduction
in short term asset volatility.

However, for a Sterling investor it is also important to look at
the interaction of hedging and whether this offers risk
reduction when it is needed most. It is also worth noting that
any currency hedging programme has a cost and associated
governance burden (which could increase significantly as new
regulations come into force).

Volatility (% p.a.)

Volatility of MSCI World ex UK in GBP
GBP base; 31 Jan 1988 - 30 Jun 2011

—— More Hedging

16.5%

16.0%

50% Hedged - a widely-adopted

strategic p‘miﬁ}

15.5%
15.0%

14.5%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 350% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Hedge ratio
Source: Record asset management

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



DRAFT

RISK Management and corelations

The current hedging
programme seeks to hedge
the Fund’s overseas exposure
to the US dollar, Euro and Yen.

Historically Sterling has tended
to behave as a ‘risk on’
currency relative to the US
dollar and Japanese Yen in
times of stress.

The currency hedge will have
compounded losses when
equitygnarkets experienced a

shar@ell off.
(9]

w
o1

Hedging can increase tail risks

The largest component of the overseas currency exposure is the
US$/ £ hedge. Historically the US$ has been seen as a safe haven
and has offered an offset to equity market risk (performing
strongly in times of crises). Sterling exposure has (relative to the
US Dollar and Yen) compounded equity gains/ losses in times of
crisis.

The chart opposite illustrates that Sterling has fallen sharply
relative to the US dollar during a number of past market crises —
the dollar exposure offers unhedged investors some protection at
the overall portfolio level. We can observe a similar pattern with
the Japanese Yen.

It is of course overly simplistic to say that these relationships will
hold true in the future, but the historical behaviour indicates that

the risk reduction offered by hedging back to Sterling has tended
to ‘fail” when it is needed most.

The Fund is currently exposed to not insignificant inflation risk (the
liabilities are linked to inflation without a cap). In a scenario where
UK inflation increases relative to elsewhere, we might expect
Sterling to depreciate. The very long term inflation protection that
might be expected from holding global equities would be lost
through the hedge. In this scenario, again the hedge would
somewhat compound other risks within the Fund.

The Fund also carries some risk linked to interest rates remaining
lower for longer (which will drive up the value placed on the
liabilities). If the UK keeps rates lower for longer than others (e.g.
US) then we would expect Sterling to fall in the short term
realising a loss on the currency hedge. This would compound the
risk of the liability value increasing.

Whilst the leverage involved in currency hedging is generally
viewed as relatively benign, it does increase overall market
exposure and can act to amplify losses in certain scenarios when
historical correlations fail — it is important to understand the
underlying market dynamics and whether these have changed
rather than simply relying on historical empirical evidence.

GBP/USD exchange rate — times of wider market stress

GBP/USD Exchange Rate

2.1 7

2 - Lehman
1992 recession Brothers
1.9 collapse
1.8
1.7 4
1.6 A

15 1

1.4 1 Dot com bubble

13+ """ T T T T T T T T T T
92 93 94 95 96 97 98 99 00 01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10111213 14 15

KPMG view

Whilst short term volatility is reduced by currency hedging, a
number of tail risks could be amplified by this approach.

At an overall portfolio level, there is an argument to remove the
currency hedge (living with additional day to day volatility in asset
values), in the belief that the overseas currency exposure (US dollar
and Yen) will act as an offset against losses in severely stressed
market environments.

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund

Wha

e COSIS

DRAFT

The risk reduction offered by
hedging overseas currency
exposure is not cost free.

A combination of direct and
indirect costs are incurred and
the process can often
consume internal
management time.

9¢ abed

It is not cost free

Whilst currency hedging is expected to reduce overall
volatility, it is not cost free and there are a variety of direct and
indirect costs involved in running a programme.

As highlighted by the Fund’s recent experience, the currency
forward contracts create cashflows as profits or losses are
realised. In the case of losses, there is a requirement to fund
this by posting collateral to the counterparty bank from time to
time.

The disinvestment required has an associated cost. These can
be significant if currency markets are volatile — this has
certainly been the case for the Fund in recent quarters. Whilst
some of the calls might be managed through ongoing
cashflow, there will ultimately be some element of cost
incurred.

Going forward the EMIR regulation may require daily
collateralisation and 5% to 10% of the notional exposure to be
held as collateral — this will increase the administrative burden
further if it proceeds.

There is also the “cost” of entering into the forward contracts
from the spread on the buying and selling of these contracts.
Currency transactions are one of the most frequent and largest
investment activities in the financial world. The currency
markets are liquid, and costs have declined significantly over
the last 20 years. Recent Vanguard research has estimated
that the transaction cost to hedge an international bond
portfolio is less than 0.20% a year for investors hedging back
to a liquid, developed-market currency, such as Sterling.

There is the also time and governance required by the Scottish
Borders Council Officers to manage the administration and
detailed reporting of the underlying programme. The cash calls
are typically required at short notice which can create
difficulties.

State Street also charge a fee for managing the programme on
the Council’s behalf.

kbl

EMR

e

andwha

[T1Ed

Pen

kpemg com. fuk

nforyol
N Scheme

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



Lurrent conditions

DRAFT

Sterling has fallen dramatically
against the US dollar, Euro and
Yes and very sharply so
following Brexit.

Sterling has recently touched

30 year lows against the dollar.

)€ abed

Recent performance

Sterling has fallen sharply against all major developed market
currencies following Brexit. This has led to sharp losses on
the existing hedging programme.

All else being equal, the recent fall in Sterling would represent
an opportunity to crystallise some gains on overseas holdings
by increasing the level of hedging.

KPMG view

From a strategic perspective, we would recommend unwinding
the currency hedge recognising the small reduction in volatility is
balanced by the costs involved, the potential compounding of
loss in certain stressed market scenarios and an (increasing)
governance burden.

However, Sterling has recently fallen very sharply and there
could be significant regret risk associated with unwinding the
programme at the current time. Sterling has recently hit 30 year
lows against the US dollar.

Recognising this, the challenge of trying to call currency markets
and the practical difficulties involved in making changes, we
therefore propose that the currency hedge should be gradually
unwound in a phased manner. We propose that this should be
implemented over the next 12 months with the hedge reduced
to nil across all currencies in a straight line manner over that
period. This should be achievable through a written instruction
to State Street. Delegated responsibility to change the hedge
following any significant changes should be retained in line with
the current approach.

Alongside this, we believe that options to make the collateral
management more cost efficient during that period should be
reviewed in order to minimise transaction costs over the period.

USDVS £

EUVSE

YENVS £

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential



KPMG

Contact us

David O'Hara

Director, Investment Advisory
T. +44(0) 141 300 5533

E. david.ohara@kpmg.co.uk

Wlin|3|o

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential


https://www.linkedin.com/company/kpmg-advisory
https://www.linkedin.com/company/kpmg-advisory
https://plus.google.com/111087034030305010189
https://plus.google.com/111087034030305010189
https://twitter.com/kpmguk
https://twitter.com/kpmguk
https://www.youtube.com/user/KPMGUK
https://www.youtube.com/user/KPMGUK
mailto:david.ohara@kpmg.co.uk

SCOttiSh Agenda Item 7

Borders
COUNCIL

RISK REGISTER UPDATE

Report by Chief Financial Officer

JOINT MEETING OF PENSION FUND COMMITTEE AND
PENSION BOARD

15 September 2016

1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY

1.1 This report forms part of the risk review requirements and provides
the Members of the Pension Fund Committee and Pension Board
with an update of the progress of the management actions to
mitigate the risks, a review of any new risks and highlights changes
to any of the risks contained in the risk register.

1.2 Identifying and managing risk is a corner stone of effective management
and is required under the Council’s Risk Management Policy and process
guide and CIPFA’s guidance “Delivering Governance in Local Government
Framework 2007"”. It is further reflected and enhanced in the “Local
Government Pension Scheme” published by CIPFA.

1.3 Appendix 1 details the risks within the approved Risk Register which have
identified management actions and the progress of these actions to date.

1.4 The recent vote to leave the European Union is highly likely to have an
impact on the Pension Fund. While the actual timing and consequences of
the change are, however, currently unknown, it is evident that the pension
fund investment strategy will have to adapt over time as the implications
are quantified. Further reports and updates will therefore be provided as
these implications act become known.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS
2.1 It is recommended that the Committee and Board:

(a) note the management actions progress as contained in
Appendix 1;

(b) note the emerging position with regard to “"Brexit” continue
to create uncertainty; no new quantifiable risks have been
identified since the last review; and

(c) agree to a key risk review being undertaken in December
2016 and reporting of progress on risk management actions.

Pa?e 39
Joint Pension Fund Committee and Pension Board, I5 September 2016 1



3 BACKGROUND

3.1 Identifying and managing risk is a corner stone of effective management
and is required under the CIPFA guidance “Delivering Governance in Local
Government Framework 2007”. It is further reflected and enhanced in the
“Local Government Pension Scheme” published by CIPFA.

3.2 The Risk Register has been developed in line with the Council’s approach to
risk management as set out in the “"Risk Management process guide” and
assesses risks using a risk score based on likelihood and impact. It has
been further refined to reflect best practice "Managing Risk in the Local
Government Pension Scheme” published by CIPFA.

3.3 The Pension Fund’s Business Plan 2016/17 - 2018/19 was approved on 16
June 2016 and set out the aims and objectives of the Fund. These aims
and objectives were fully considered and recognised in the formation and
approval of the Pension Funds risk register.

3.4 The Council’s revised Risk Management process guide uses the following
risk scoring:

Level of risk

— High —Risk Score Range 15-25

AMBER Medium — Risk Score Range 6 — 12

— Low — Risk Score Range 1 -5

3.5 To comply with the Council’s revised policy of risk management and best
practice a Risk Management reporting cycle was developed around the
performance and business plan reporting of the Pension Fund. As a result
the following cycle of reporting was adopted:

Quarterly e Quarterly Investment Performance Report.
e Key risks, escalation of any risks that are perceived to have
changed adversely and any new risks need to be
considered by the Committee.

e Update on progress of risk management action delivery.

Bi- e Mid-Year Progress report on Business Plan Actions.

Annually Key risks, escalation of any risks that are perceived to have
changed adversely and any new risks need to be
considered by the Committee.

e Update on progress of risk management action delivery.

Annual Governance Meeting with Annual Report and Policy/

Strategy Performance Reports.

e Annual reporting on progress with Business Plan and
approval of updated Business Plan.

e Annual reporting on progress with Risk Management

Actions and approval of fully reviewed Risk Register

including consideration of any new risks.

Annually

Page 40
Joint Pension Fund Committee and Pension Board, 15 September 2016 2



4 RISK REGISTER UPDATE

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

A full risk workshop was undertaken on 30 May 2016 by Officers in order to
ensure that the risk register’s contents were still relevant and up-to-date.
The outcome of the workshop was then considered and approved at the
Committee/Board meeting on 16 June 2016. This report provides the
quarterly review of risks and the progress of the actions.

The progress of the individual management actions identified in the current
risk register are detailed in Appendix 1.

There has been discussion at Scottish national level on the potential for
pension funds working together to drive increased investment in
infrastructure. Officers are currently undertaking further work to assess
the possible implications and opportunities for the Pension Fund.

In June the UK voted to leave the European Union. The timing and
consequences of this decision are yet not fully known. Officers, in
conjunction with the Investment Advisor, are monitoring the situation and
will report risks and opportunities to the Joint Board and Committee as
they become clearer.

No new quantifiable risks have been identified since the approval of the risk
register on 16 June 2016. The risks previously identified and scored
remain unchanged.

5 IMPLICATIONS

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

Financial
There are no direct financial implications of this report.

Risk and Mitigations

(a) The purpose of providing the update to the Committee and Board to
ensure that the Members of the Pension Fund Committee and the
Pension Board understand the risks faced and how it is proposed to
manage, mitigate or tolerate these risks. The additional proposed
actions as contained in Appendix 1 and recommended for approval
by the Committee and Board in this report, are designed to directly
enhance the management of risks.

(b) The Chief Officer Audit and Risk has commented that there is a
substantial framework for effective management of risks relating to
the Pension Fund (i.e. the business plan objectives, clear
governance arrangements, regular monitoring, risk register, etc.).

Equalities

It is anticipated that there are no adverse impact due to race, disability,
gender, age, sexual orientation or religion/belief arising from the proposals
in this report.

Acting Sustainably

There are no direct economic, social or environmental issues with this
report which would affect the Council’s sustainability policy.

Carbon Management

There are no direct carbon emissions impacts as a result of this report.
Pa

edl
Joint Pension Fund Committee and Pension Board, 95 September 2016 3



5.6 Rural Proofing

It is anticipated there will be no adverse impact on the rural area from the
proposals contained in this report.

5.7 Changes to Scheme of Administration or Scheme of Delegation

No changes to the Scheme of Administration or Scheme of Delegation are
required as a result of this report.

6 CONSULTATION

6.1 The Monitoring Officer, the Chief Legal Officer, the Chief Officer Audit and
Risk, the Chief Officer HR and the Clerk to the Council have been consulted
and their comments included in the report.

Approved by

David Robertson

Chief Financial Officer Signature ....ccvcieririririra s
Author(s)

Name Designation and Contact Number

Kirsty Robb Treasury & Capital Manager, 01835 825249

Background Papers:
Previous Minute Reference: Pension Fund Committee and Pension Board 16 June
2016

Note - You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various
computer formats by contacting the address below. The Treasury & Capital Team can
also give information on other language translations as well as providing additional
copies.

Contact us at: Treasury & Capital Team, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells,
Melrose, TD6 OSA Tel: 01835 825016 Fax 01835 825166. email:
treasuryteam@scotborders.gov.uk

Page 42
Joint Pension Fund Committee and Pension Board, 15 September 2016 4



mailto:treasuryteam@scotborders.gov.uk

Pension Fund - Risk Register

Controls Residual Risk

Proximity | Risk Owner leellhoo Current Controls Gl SLEIE
Assessment od

Category Causes/Triggers Consequences

Failure to achieve the target
investment returns set out in
the Statement of Investment

Inappropriate strategic asset
allocation for Fund's requirements;

Inappropriate investment

approaches within asset class; S EEGETIEES 10 Hie

Continual monitoring of investment
performance;

Engagement with Investment Adviser to update
investment strategies and periodic review of
strategic asset allocation;

Scrutiny of Investment Manager performance by
Investment & Performance Sub-Committee;
Actuary reports included element of prudence.

Pension Fund

L i employer contributions; . TREAT
Principles over the longer Underperformance/ negative : . Committee/ o i .
1.1 ﬁ\iseesttrient term may lead to significant investment returns from grcl)slt:nlzrt)il:e(ilzr;n es to Ongoing Chief 4 3 12 Additional Af;tlons Pr'oposetfl. . . Effective 12
increased employer investments under management; invr;stment s%rate g Financial Enhance officer role in monitoring of investment
contribution rates and costs Significant and sustained market Funding Deficit fo?):;und Officer relt(urnsEto enable more tlr::ely ac't:o: t'I)I be f
of implementing changes to and economic events creating g : ;f Gl ncowl':age nl:nore t oroulg Gkl engfe ©
T the investment strategy. adverse movements in valuations; todl:J"BsgrtZall:;‘:ce;rl‘)ir zao':%ggrs;e x;:ir:is;z?no ;;me
& Investment Strategy inconsistent  oorty mandate P 9
o with Funding Strategy. property c
N
w
Robust procurement processes around the
custodian;
Reconciliation of Custodian to Investment
Manager Records;
Monitor custodian performance and credit
Failure of Fund's Custodian Inaccurate recording of asset rMact;I:ist];rin of financial media:
may lead to the Fund's transactions; Pension Fund g ’
Asset & assets not being properly Financial or internal controls fail to Financial or information Committee/ Covered by leaal contract:
Investment managed resulting in prevent fraud or misappropriation; loss in relation to Ongoing Chief 4 3 12 Re uIated)t,) IgCA assets ’not on custodian Effective 6
financial and/or information Organisational failure resulting in investment assets. Financial balgnce she)t,at' ’
loss in relation to investment closure of business/cessation of Officer Recei P ’ I I f
assets trading eceipt of annual controls reports from
. . Custodian's External Auditors;
Annual External Audit Process;
Legal recourse within contracts.
TREAT
Additional Actions Proposed:
Procurement of revised custodian services
Robust procurement processes around the
managers;
Engagement with Investment Adviser in relation
to monitoring external environment in respect of
the individual managers; Reconciliation of
Failure of one of the Fund's . Custodian to Investment
Investment Manager's framework . X
Investment Manager may Pension Fund Manager Records;
| . of controls does not prevent fraud, _. . inf . c . / - ificati £i .
Asset & ead to the Fund's assets not misappropriation or erroneous Financial or information ommittee Diversification of investment managers;
1.3 Investment being properly managed investment activity: loss in relation to Ongoing Chief 5 3 Continual monitoring of investment Effective 9
resulting in financial and/or Y . . investment assets. Financial performance;
. . . . Investment Manager's business " .
information loss in relation Officer Scrutiny of Investment Manager performance by

10of 12

to investment assets.

model fails.

Investment & Performance Sub-Committee;
Regulated by FCA;

Receipt of annual controls reports from
Investment Managers' External Auditors; Legal
recourse within contracts

TOLERATE




Pension Fund - Risk Register

1.4

1.5

1.6

Category

Asset &
Investment

Asset &
Investment

v obed

Asset &
Investment

20of12

Causes/Triggers

Failure to take expert advice

or risk of poor

investment/actuarial advice Committee ignores advice
may lead to the Fund's provided by expert adviser;
assets not being properly External adviser provides
managed resulting in inappropriate/inaccurate/
inappropriate investment insufficient advice to
decisions and poor returns Committee/Officers.

and/or insufficient funding

levels

Failure to manage Currency

risk may lead to an inability

to maximise the returns from

investments with the agreed Adverse movements in

risk parameters resulting in market/economic conditions
an adverse impact on impacting on currency rates
valuation of investment

assets and assessment of

Fund's future liabilities

Failure to react to major
changes in market/economic
conditions may lead to an
inability to manage the fund
properly resulting in
significant adverse impact
on valuation of investment
assets and assessment of
Fund's future liabilities

Adverse movements in
market/economic conditions

Consequences

Wrong or inappropriate
decisions resulting in
inadequate investment
returns and/or insufficient
funding levels potentially
increasing employers
contribution rates.

Adverse impact on
valuation of investment
assets and assessment of
Fund's future liabilities

Adverse impact on
valuation of investment
assets and assessment of
Fund's future liabilities

Proximity | Risk Owner

Pension Fund
Committee/
Chief
Financial
Officer

Ongoing

Chief
Ongoing Financial
Officer

Chief
Ongoing Financial
Officer

Inherent Risk Controls Residual Risk
T N R
Assessment od

L ihoo
d

5 4
3 4
4 5

Robust procurement processes around the
recruitment and appointment process;

New Investment Adviser appointed;

Review of Actuary planned;

Benchmark performance against other LAs;
Regular benchmarking and cross verification of
advice with other LAs through Local Govt.
Pension Scheme(Scotland) Investment &
Governance Group;

Other info sources and discussions with non-
Fund investment managers/advisers to validate
advice and performance of Fund;

Pension Fund Board provides scrutiny role
TREAT

Ongoing training for elected members of the
Pension Board and Committee

Procurement of revised Cusodian services to
include Performance reporting.

Passive Currency hedge in place for directly

held equity investments on major currencies;
Monthly review of hedge levels.

TREAT

Additional Actions Proposed:
Review currency hedge requirements and use.

Continual monitoring of investment
performance;

Engagement with Investment Adviser to update
investment strategies and periodic review of
strategic asset allocation;

Diversification of asset classes and investment
managers;

Scrutiny of Strategic Asset Allocation and
Investment performance by Investment &
Performance Sub-Committee;

TREAT

Additional Actions Proposed:

Long term view of investment growth is required

and will continue to use existing controls for the
Pension Fund.

Undertaking full asset allocation review as
detailed in business plan.

Effective

Partially
Effective

Effective

07/09/2016



Pension Fund - Risk Register

Category Causes/Triggers Consequences Proximity | Risk Owner ME Current Controls Asgz:;::ant m les:;ho m

Robust procurement processes around the
managers placed on short lists;
Diversification of investment managers;
Continual monitoring of investment
performance against benchmark, targets and

Underperformance of
Investment Manager(s) may
lead to financial losses for

the Fund resulting in the Corporate tolerance:
inability to achieve the target . . . . Finance ’ . . . .
" . Underperformance/ negative Financial loss which may Engagement with Investment Adviser in relation
investment returns set out in . L - Manager/ . . .
returns from investments under lead to significant increased Bk to monitoring external environment and setting
Asset & the Statement of Investment R . Pension Fund - R .
1.7 C o i management as a result of employer contribution rates Ongoing . 3 4 12 benchmarks in respect of the individual Effective 2 3 6
Investment Principles which over the S . Committee/ . i
individual management and costs of changing . investment managers;
longer term may lead to . X Chief .
e . approach/actions. investment managers . . Scrutiny of Investment Manager performance by
significant increased Financial

Investment & Performance Sub-Committee;
Monitoring of financial media;
Immediate action would be considered and

employer contribution rates Officer
and costs of implementing
changes in investment

U removal of funds to Transition Manager.
g managers.
) TOLERATE
I
(6]
Insufficient scrutiny of
manager mandates and Lack of information from fund Detailed monitoring in place for the investment
Asset & terms of business may lead managers; Inappropriate fee levels and Capital & managers where direct investments held, higher Partiall
to a failure to manage the Lack of capacity within pension pprop Ongoing Investments 2 3 6 level monitoring for unitised funds; Y 1 3
Investment L . ' other costs. Effective
Fund properly resulting in  fund team and advisers; Manager
inappropriate fee levels and TOLERATE
other costs.
Investment Strategy is
inconsistent with Funding Full actuarial valuation undertaken on Triennial
Strategy may lead to the basis. Funding Strategy Statement and
fund not being managed TR Statement of Investment Principles updated and
g future liabilities of the Fund . - -
properly through setting . Pension Fund approved at the same time. As part of this
T Investment Strategy for Fund set  not being able to be . .
employer contribution rates . - . ) . . Committee/ assess requirement for Investment strategy to
Asset & . L without appropriate consideration covered by its assets; . . X . .
1.9 incorrectly resulting in the . . . Ongoing Chief 3 3 9 be reviewed and updated accordingly. Effective 2 2
Investment s of the requirements of the Funding Employers increase . .
future liabilities of the Fund Strate contribution rates to Financial
not being able to be covered ay address anv funding aa Officer TREAT
by its assets and requiring y 9 gap. Additional Actions Proposed:
employers to increase Undertake a full investment strategy review
contribution rates to following 2014 valuation.
address any funding gap.
Continual monitoring of investment
performance;
Engagement with Investment Adviser to update
investment strategies and periodic review of
Failure of Funds investment strategic asset allocation and introduction of
returns to keep pace with General economic climate results other asset types;
pay and CPI Inflation in hiaher CPI inflati d Funding levels fall. SBC Regular dialogue with Fund Actuary;
110 Asset & increases may lead to in Igt er t |tn a u':in an tk unding :".’; St el e t pay . 4 5 Actuary attendance at Pension Fund Committee Effecti 3 4 12
A0 | Vestment Funding Levels falling and investment returns do not keep more contributions into ongoing e T R (v g ective
pace due global investment Fund

potentially requiring
increases in employer
contribution rates.

markets and economies

TREAT

Additional Actions Proposed:

Continued monitoring and evaluation of inflation
and pay awards

3of 12 07/09/2016



Pension Fund - Risk Register

Category

2.1 Employer

2.2 Employer

23

E
5
Q
«Q
()
I
o

mployer

4 of 12

Causes/Triggers

Failure to apply and

demonstrate fairness in the

treatment of different fund

employers may lead to

improper management of the Failure by employer to notify the
Fund and result in fund of significant changes of
inappropriate employer membership.

contribution rates or cross-

subsidisation of employers

outwith the agreed pooling

arrangements.

Adoption of either an
inappropriately slow or rapid
pace of funding rates for
different employers may
result in improper
management of the Fund
and result in inappropriate
employer contribution rates
and a possible shortfall in
assets to cover the
employer's liabilities.

Failure by employer to notify the
fund of significant changes of
membership.

Failure of a Scheme

Employer may lead to a

shortfall in the funding levels Scheme employer ceasing to
of whole Fund resulting in operate

increases for all other

employers contributions

Consequences Proximity

Improper management of
the Fund;

Inappropriate employer
contribution rates or cross-
subsidisation of employers
outwith the agreed pooling
arrangements leading to a
shortfall of funding or over
charging of an employer.

Ongoing

Improper management of
the Fund;

Inappropriate employer
contribution rates and a
possible shortfall in assets
to cover the employer's
liabilities.

Ongoing

Shortfall in fund as a whole
with increases required in
all other employers
contributions

Ongoing

Risk Owner tikelihoo Current Controls (e, Likeliho
d Assessment od

Pension Fund

Committee/

Chief 3 4 12
Financial

Officer

Pension Fund
Committee/
Chief
Financial
Officer

Pension Fund

Committee/

Chief 4 3 12
Financial

Officer

Full actuarial valuation undertaken on Triennial
basis, 2014 valuation completed;

Review Pooling arrangements at each Valuation
and implement appropriate de-pooling e.g. Live
Borders/SBHA to reflect employer situations.
Ensure full reporting of options are presented to
the Committee and Board when employer
circumstances change to ensure decision
making fully informed.

TREAT

Additional Actions Proposed:

Annual Declaration to include changes of
scheme membership for current and future
year.

Full actuarial valuation undertaken on Triennial
basis, 2014 valuation completed;

Review Pooling arrangements at each Valuation
and implement appropriate de-pooling e.g. Live
Borders/SBHA to reflect employer situations;
Ensure full reporting of options are presented to
the Committee and Board when employer
circumstances change to ensure decision
making fully informed.

TOLERATE

Full actuarial valuation undertaken on Triennial
basis;

Bonds in place for Amey, and Council
agreement in place for Live Borders and SB
Cares;

Contribution rates based on open/closed status
of employer;

Updated Admission Agreement and formal
consideration of support at initial set up now
implemented;

Movement to closed scheme requires actuarial
review, results then implemented.

TOLERATE

Effective

Effective

Effective

-

07/09/2016



Pension Fund - Risk Register

Category

2.4 Employer

Lt abed

3.1 Resources & skills

3.2 Resources & skills

50of 12

Causes/Triggers

Failure to understand and be
involved in proposed
structural changes in
employers' engagement in
the Scheme may lead to Failure by employer to notify the
failure to manage the fund of significant changes of
transition to a different membership;

level/type of participation by Changes to composition of

the employer in the Fund employees;

resulting in inappropriate Fund participation no longer
employer contribution rates affordable to an employer.

and insufficient management

of contributions to cover

future liabilities of that

employer.

Available resource;
Over reliance on key officers Requirement to maintain admin
may lead to significant costs;
knowledge gaps resulting in Absence of succession
failure to manage the Fund management in relation to
effectively. supporting crucial aspects of the
operation of the Fund.

Failure to provide
appropriate training and
support and/or secure
Board/Committee Member
engagement in Training
Programme may lead to
ineffective management of
the Fund as a result of
poorly informed decision
making.

Availability of members to attend
training;

Inappropriate training programme.

Consequences

Failure to manage the
transition to a different
levelltype of participation by
the employer in the Fund;
Inappropriate employer
contribution rates and
insufficient management of
contributions to cover
future liabilities of that
employer.

Fund reaches maturity
more quickly;

Adverse impact on cash
flow and funding levels (per
risk 4.1)

May lead to significant
knowledge gaps resulting in
failure to manage and
operate the Fund
effectively.

Ineffective management of
the Fund as a result of
poorly informed decision
making.

Proximity

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing

Risk Owner

Pension Fund
Committee/
HR Shared
Services
Manager

Chief
Financial
Officer/ Chief
Officer Human
Resources

Pension Fund
Committee/
Chief
Financial
Officer

Inherent Risk Controls Residual Risk
i ) A P W o -

3 4 12
3 4 12
2 4 8

Annual Employers Liaison group established to
improve two-way communication;

Borders College and 2 Admitted Bodies
representatives on Pension Board;

Full actuarial valuation undertaken on Triennial
basis;

Active involvement of actuary in projects
affecting membership structures;

Low number of admitted and scheduled bodies
and any new admitted bodies are carefully
considered before admission.

TREAT

Additional Actions Proposed:

Full communications strategy being developed
during 2016/17 to further improve Employer
Engagement;

Annual Declaration to include changes of
scheme membership for current and future
year.

Use of external advisers (investment/tax/SPPA)
provides additional resilience and resources.
Pension administration system implemented
with help modules which can be enhanced to
include details specific to SBC Pension Fund;
Restructure of teams to reduce single points of
failure and manage succession planning.

TREAT

Additional Action Proposed:

Improvement in quality of procedure notes for
officers.

Approved Training Policy;

Training assessment informs the annual
training plan;

Training opportunities are made available to
members of Board and Committee;

Members have access to External Adviser and
Council Officers to help advise and inform them
in relation to decisions taken by the
Committees;

Access to the Pension Regulator's website;
Participation in training is published in Annual
Report.

TOLERATE

Effective

Effective

Effective

07/09/2016



Pension Fund - Risk Register

Category

Over reliance on key
Members of the Board or

Committee may lead to lack Knowledge and experience gap of
new members.

3.3 Resources & skills of challenge and objectivity
in decision making resulting
in failure to manage the
Fund effectively.

Lack of sufficient knowledge
and expertise on Pension
Fund Committee and Board
members to discharge their
duties could lead to failure to
manage the Fund effectively
as a result of poorly
considered decision making.

3.4 Resources & skills

Failure of Officers to
maintain sufficient level of
competence to discharge
their duties could lead to

esources & skills failure to manage the Fund
effectively as a result of their
inability to provide
appropriate decision making
support and advice.

o
8t abed

6 of 12

Causes/Triggers Consequences

Failure to manage the Fund

Knowledge and experience gap of

Poorly considered decision
new members.

Changes in legislation;

New investment types and Failure to manage the Fund

Lack of documented procedures.

Risk Owner tikelihoo Current Controls (e, Likeliho
d Assessment od

Pension Fund
Committee/

Pension Fund
Board Chairs

Pension Fund

Committee/

Chief 3 4 12
Financial

Officer

Chief

Financial

Officer/ Chief 3 3 9
Officer Human

Resources

All Members of the Pension Fund Committee
and Pension Board are actively involved in the
discussions with External Advisers and
therefore have access to the same information
and training opportunities;

Clear scheme of administration and
constitutions established for the Committee and
Board providing clarity of roles and
responsibilities;

Training Policy sets out skills and knowledge
responsibilities for members.

Pension Fund Committee and nominated reps of
Board are actively involved in discussions with
investment managers.

Effective

TOLERATE

Pension Fund committee and Board have
access to External Advisers and Council
Officers to help advise and inform them;
Pension Fund committe and nominate
repersentives of Board have acces to
Investment Managers via the Investment and
Performance sub committee = Members
Training Policy for Pensions Fund established,
monitored and reported on annually;

Annual training programme in place;

Skills and training assessment undertaken
annually.

Effective

TOLERATE

Use of External Advisers provides additional

resilience and resources;

PRD process implemented to identified training

and development requirements;

Active participation in Scottish Investments and

Governance Group (IGG) and Scottish Pensions

Liaison Group; Partially
Regular engagement with external Investment Effective
Managers to supplement knowledge.

TREAT

Additional Action Proposed:

Improvement in quality of procedure notes for
officers.

N

07/09/2016



Pension Fund - Risk Register

Category

4.1 Liquidity

61 abed

4.2 Liquidity

4.3 Liquidity

7 of 12

Changes in composition of
Pension Fund membership,
i.e.active/deferred/pensioner
s may lead to insufficient
assets in the Fund to meet
the future liabilities as they
fall due potentially
increasing employers
contribution levels and
changes to the investment
strategy.

Employees can no longer
afford to participate in the
scheme then there may be
reduced income into Fund
resulting in a change being
required to the Funding and
Investments Strategy due to
changes in participation
levels.

Significant differences
between Actuarial
Assumptions in the
Triennial Valuation Reports
and reality may lead to
setting Funding and
Investment Strategies which
may result in insufficient
cashflow to fund current
obligations or insufficient
funding to cover future
liabilities

Causes/Triggers

Variance between CPI rates and
pay increases;

Fewer people joining;

Other employers close funds;
Economic drivers to reduce
workforce.

Economic circumstances;
Potential increases to employee
contributions due to central Govt.
decisions;

Changes to tax relief on pensions.

CPIl inflation;
Mortality levels;
Investment Returns.

Consequences

Fund Matures more quickly
than currently anticipated
and may lead to there being
insufficient assets in the
Fund to meet the future
liabilities as they fall due
potentially increasing
employers contribution
levels and changes to the
investment strategy.

Reduced income into Fund

resulting in a change being
required to the Funding and
Investments Strategy

Setting Funding and
Investment Strategies;
Insufficient cashflow to fund
current obligations or
insufficient funding to cover
future liabilities;

Increased employer
contributions.

Proximity | Risk Owner

Chief
Ongoing Financial
Officer

Chief
Ongoing Financial
Officer

Chief
Ongoing Financial
Officer

5

4

L ihoo
d
4 I
4 I

Funding Strategy Statement, Statement of
Investment Principles and Triennial Valuation all
work together to identify funding requirements
and how these are met;

Use of an Investment Adviser and Actuarial
services as and when required:

Implementation of Auto-enrolment with final
transition being completed by July 2017;
Pension Administration Strategy in place and
monitored and Employer Liaison Group;
Annual Report includes analysis of membership
changes.

TREAT

Additional Actions Proposed:

Close monitoring of early retiral decisions and
quantification of impact on pension fund being
included as part of the Council reports;
Continue review of cashflow scenarios to
identify timelines and impact of changing
legislation.

Limited measures in place. Nationally negotiated
rates/benefits with employee representatives
(i.e. Trade Unions) on minimising employee
contribution increases;

Pay awards now being given, economy now
improving;

LGPS changes implementation of 50/50 option;
Trade Union involvement in the Pension Board
and Scheme Advisory Board; Communication
issued with annual benefits statements.

TREAT

Additional Actions Proposed:

Ensure regular information is issued to
employees setting out the continued benefits of
scheme membership e.g. tax relief on
contributions/employers contribution;
Communication strategy being developed.

Full actuarial valuation undertaken on Triennial
basis;

Detailed dialogue with Actuary ahead of
valuation to agree evidence based assumptions
to be used;

Regular information provided by Actuary on
differences as they occur from assumptions.
Any strain on fund incurred paid by employer at
point of retirement;

Regular monitoring of investment performance
and where medium to long term trend in returns
is identified then this will be reviewed.

TOLERATE

Partially
Effective

Partially
Effective

Effective

Residual Risk

Current Controls Control Likeliho
Assessment od

4 4
4 3
2 3

07/09/2016




Pension Fund - Risk Register

Inherent Risk Controls Residual Risk
ok owner [t M4 scor | curmmoome | Z20kL | e [ M
d Assessment od

Category Causes/Triggers Consequences Proximity

Number and value of early
retirements increases to
levels in excess of the

Full actuarial valuation undertaken on Triennial
Valuation;

Detailed dialogue with Actuary ahead of
valuation to agree evidence based assumptions
to be used;

Regular information provided by Actuary on
differences as they occur from assumptions;

S CEUED G A I, Insufficient funding for il Ensure Employers contribution to strain on the
4.4 Liquidity which may lead to incorrect Reducing workforce. L 9 Ongoing Financial 3 12 . ploy ] . Effective 2 2
e future liabilities. " fund is correctly calculated and received into
employer contributions Officer the Fund:
pemg'sgt, resultl_ng h Reduction in applications being supported seen
msufflc_len_t_fyndmg Ll in recent tranches of ER/VS;
ot el e Continue to monitor ER/VS applications and
impacts.
TOLERATE
Requests for transfers are currently mitigated
by obtaining enhanced levels of indemnity for
the members, the receiving scheme and written
. confirmation of the scheme approval from
New pension access Requirement to release HMRC;
reforms (“freedom of Iargebamo.unts of cash to Monitoring will be undertaken during the year
choice”) may lead to ) XA . ) and reported to Members as part of the annual
pension fund members . L Disinvest current assets in Chief report. With effect from 1 April 2015 members
o electing to transfer all or part _Changes in legislation and a much more unplanne_d ) Fm_anclal ) with funds in excess of £30k must receive _
4.5 Liquidity of their pension entitlement increase in awareness. manner with the potent!al to Ongoing Off!cerl Chief 3 9 professional advice from a Financial Conduct Effective 2 3 6
. - disadvantage the Funding Officer Human FCA lated adviser:
much earlier than projected ition: R (FCA) regulated adviser;
resulting in the potential for [PESIRE . ESORIEES Continue to monitor ongoing legislation around
PP ] Scheme sanction charges thi
a significant change in the for any transfer to Is area.
liability profile for the Fund. unappyrove 4 sohome
. TREAT
Additional Actions Proposed:
Development of comms strategy.
Daily and weekly monitoring of Pension Fund's
Failure to manage the Creliiione
IR . Currency Hedge requirements monitored ahead
Y liquidity required for the of cash requirements
g Fund's cashflows may lead . Requirement to divest q ’
. Currency hedge; .
) to assets being sold at Higher than anticipated levels of investment assets at an TREAT
al unattractive times or 9 . P unattractive time or missing Capital & L . . .
@i . e retirement; . ies . Additional Actions Proposed: Partially
4.6 tiquidity investment opportunities gt investment opportunities Ongoing Investments 4 12 - - . 3 3 9
. A Higher levels of lump sums . : Improve quality of medium term cashflow Effective
missed due to unavailability tation tak i t which result in an adverse Manager § ting for the Fund:
of cash, resulting in an commutation taken on retirement. impact on the value of the ore_cas_ ing tor the Fund; .
L . Reviewing currency hedge requirements;
adverse impact on the Fund's assets . . .
valuation of the Fund's Asset allocation review to review cash flow
assets projections requirements;
: New Treasury Management system to improve
cash flow projections.
Pension administration system implemented;
Resourcelink continues to be used for pension
Failure to process pension payments;
payments and lump sums on - . . . . . . Pensions Administration Strategy sets out
time may lead to financial ::::::E::_e:: :ar:::orlr:a:rc_m en :::;Pclal I IR0ES WE TR performance standards and performance
distress for retiring staff and ployer; e against these is monitored annually;
. Lack of access to pension fund Potential referral to the HR Shared . .
5.1 Administrative PEUEN R O] 140 system information; Pensions Regulator and/or Ongoing Services 3 9 UL I ST SO CU A L) S O Effective 2 2
: Pensions Regulator and/or y o . 9 going continues to be monitored to ensure adequate
Absence of specialist pension external auditor; Manager

8 of 12

external auditor resulting in
the possibility of additional
penalty costs and
reputational damage.

admin.

Additional penalty costs;
Reputational damage.

staffing and knowledge maintained.

TOLERATE

07/09/2016



Pension Fund - Risk Register

Category

5.2 Administrative

TG abed

5.3 Administrative

5.4 Administrative

5.6 Administrative

9of 12

Failure to collect and
account for contributions
from employers and
employees on time may lead
to adverse cashflow
implications for the Fund
potentially resulting in
adverse external audit
opinion, referral to the
Pensions Regulator,
reputational damage and
requirement to divest
investments to fund the
cashflow deficit.

Failure to provide pensions
administration service due
to major operational
disruption could lead to
inability to provide a high
quality pension service to
members

Failure to prevent fraud or
misappropriation by scheme
member, employee or
scheme employer within the
Fund may lead to loss of
funds.

Failure to hold personal data
securely resulting in
personal data loss,
reputational damage and
potential financial penalty

Causes/Triggers

External employers not remitting
contributions on time.

Loss of main office;
Computer system;
Staff absence.

Lack of monitoring;
Lack of segregation of duties.

Lack of controls;

Lack of monitoring;

Lack of procedures;

Lack of training and awareness.

Consequences Proximity

Adverse cashflow
implications for the Fund;
Adverse external audit
opinion;

Referral to the Pensions
Regulator;

Reputational damage;
Requirement to divest
investments to fund the
cashflow deficit.

Ongoing

Ability to process payments
on time;

Financial distress to
members;

Reputational risk.

Ongoing

Inability to provide a high
quality pension service to
members;

Financial loss to the Fund;
Impact on benefits paid to
members.

Ongoing

Data lost or compromised;
Reputational risk; Potential
financial Penalty from

Information Commissioner.

Ongoing

Risk Owner

HR Shared
Services
Manager

HR Shared
Services
Manager

HR Shared
Services
Manager

HR Shared
Services
Manager

L ihoo Control Likeliho
Current Controls
d Assessment od

3 4 12
4 3 12
3 3 9
2 3 6

Pension administration system implemented;
Resourcelink continues to be used for pension
payments;

Pensions Administration Strategy sets out
performance standards and performance
against these is monitored annually;

Staffing structure of HR Shared Services
continues to be monitored to ensure adequate
staffing and knowledge maintained;

TOLERATE

Robust business continuity processes in place
across the Council around key business

processes, including a disaster recovery IT site.

Reviewed regularly.

Pensions Administration System is hosted
system, along with Windows 7 provides
improved ability for homeworking;
Involvement in design and implementation of
ERP system.

TOLERATE

Robust segregation of duties and other internal
controls to mitigate against this risk; Immediate
action taken upon discovery of fraud;

Internal & External Audit programme also picks
up the monitoring of this risk.

TOLERATE

Pension administration system implemented;
Resourcelink continued to be used for pension
payments;

Staffing structure of HR Shared Services
continues to monitored to ensure adequate
staffing and knowledge maintained;

All HRSS staff fully trained in mandatory Data
Protection and fully compliant with SBC Info.
Governance requirements.

TOLERATE

Effective

Effective

Effective

Effective

07/09/2016




Pension Fund - Risk Register

Category

5.7 Administrative

5.8 Administrative

G abed

5.9 Mdministrative

Regulatory &

£l Compliance

10 of 12

Failure to keep pension
records up to date and
accurate may lead to
incorrect pensions
information being issued or
incorrect benefits
calculations or payments

Failure to communicate
effectively with stakeholders
in Pension Fund resulting in
inability to provide high
quality pensions service

Failure to ensure pension
transfer payments due
to/payable by the fund are
calculated accurately and
received/paid resulting in
incorrect funds being held
within the Fund to pay future
benefits to individuals

Failure to administer and
manage Fund in line with
requirements of legislation
and other regulations e.g.
LGPS regulations, HMRC
may lead to benefits
calculated incorrectly and/or
breach legislation

Causes/Triggers

Lack of info from members and
employers;

Human error;

IT systems failure.

Failure to issue information in a
timely manner and in an easily
understandable format.

Failure to ensure pension transfer
payments due to the fund are
calculated accurately and received

Changes to legislation;
Lack of staff training;
Lack of knowledge and skills

Consequences Proximity | Risk Owner

Incorrect records leading to

incorrect estimates being HR Shared
issued and potentially Ongoing Services
incorrect pensions being Manager
paid.
Scheme members not HR Shared
aware of their rights Services
resulting in bad decisions; Ongoin Manager/
Employers not aware of going Capital &
regulations, procedures, Investments
etc. Manager
Insufficient funds
transferred/received to
meet future obligations;
Failure to protect the
solvency of the fund and HR Shared
equivalent rights acquired Ondoina  Services
are transferring members in going Manager
accordance with the 9
regulations; Referral to the
Pension Regulator;
Reputational damage;
Financial penalty.
HR Shared
Wrong pension payments Services
made or estimates given; Ondoin Manager/
Breach of regulations; going Capital &
Prosecution. Investments
Manager

L ihoo Control Likeliho
Current Controls
d Assessment od

3 4 12
3 3 9
2 3 6
2 3 6

Pension administration system implemented;
Resourcelink continued to be used for pension
payments;

Staffing structure of HR Shared Services
continues to monitored to ensure adequate
staffing and knowledge maintained;

All HRSS staff fully trained mandatory Data
Protection and fully compliant with SBC Info.
Governance requirements;

Annual Statements issued to active and deferred
members, including list of beneficiaries.

TREAT

Additional Action Proposed:

Communication plan to be put in place to ensure
employees notify employers of any changes.

Engagement in Scottish pension networks;
Union and Admitted body representation on the
Pension Fund Board;

Publication of annual report via website and
printed copies to all Scheduled and Admitted
bodies;

Annual reporting or performance of issuing
Benefits Statements to Pension Fund Committee
and Board.

TREAT
Additional Action Proposed:
Implementation of Communications Strategy.

Pension administration system continues to
provide automated support in calculation, using
nationally approved scheme based on humber
of standard assumptions at point of transfer.

TOLERATE

Compliance with new accounting standards and
pension fund regulations are subject to robust
internal and external audit review and reporting;

Participation in the active Scottish Pensions
networks and CIPFA updates;

External Audit review extends beyond financial
controls;

Pension Board review of decisions;

PRD process implemented to identify training
and development requirements.

TOLERATE

Partially
Effective

Effective

Effective

Effective

07/09/2016



Pension Fund - Risk Register

. o - Likelihoo Control Likeliho
Category Causes/Triggers Consequences Proximity | Risk Owner ME Current Controls mm
Participation in active CIPFA and Scottish
Pension network allow changes and impacts to
be identified quickly;
Loss of independence in Invol\.lemt?nt with COSLA discussions on
the management of the Pensions; L .
Changes in legislation and Fund; Chief Morllt_orm%and h|gl:|lhl|ght|ng.act|ons a“‘f
other regulatory frameworks Impact on Fund value and S decisions from scheme advisory board;
Regulatory & may impact adversely on the . . benefits; . . . Partially
L2 Compliance Fund in terms of funding ot S [E SlA E EIE R, Increased costs to the Ongoing Off!cer/ il < g TREAT Effective . &
levels and governance Fund, employer i G e Additional Actions Proposed:
structures contributions; Resources Seek to input into any of the legislative change
Potential loss of active through active membership of COSLA;
scheme members. Investigate joint investment opportunities with
other LGPS funds for infrastructure.
)
QD
«Q
D
o1 Compliance subject to robust internal and
w Failure to produce accounts, external audit review and reporting;
notices and publications Lack of capacity: Accounts qualified by Corporate Participation in the active Scottish Pensions
Regulatory & correctly or on time of capacity; | External Auditors; Referral . orp networks; .
6.3 ] AP Conflicting operational demands, - Ongoing Finance 3 3 9 S . . . . Effective 2 2
Compliance resulting in inability to including Transformational activit to Pensions Regulator or Manager Staff training requirements identified via PRD
manage the fund effectively 9 Y- Scheme Advisory Board 9 and attendance at appropriate training events.
and compliantly.
TOLERATE
Changes in national
jurisdictions may lead to Changes in the regulatory
changes in the regulatory and tax environment under Corporate Monitoring of political position via news
Regulatory & and tax environment under . . S which the Scheme operates . orp releases and group networks. .
6.4 . . Changes in national jurisdictions . Ongoing Finance 2 3 (] Effective 2 3 6
Compliance which the Scheme operates and this may affect the Manager
and this may affect the Fund's ability to reclaim 9 TOLERATE
Fund's ability to reclaim taxes e.g. Withholding Tax
taxes
Members are clear on their respective
. . . . . responsibilities to the Council and Pension
Conflict of interest for Failure t? ac_hlev.e Pension Fund (Constitution and Code of Conduct);
Elected Members on Fund objectives; . 3 .
N . . Officers and Investment Adviser provide
Pension Fund Committee Failure to make the best additional clarity and supbort to avoid these
and Board between Council decision for the Pension Chief situations: y PP
7.1 Reputation priorities and Pension Fund Conflicts of interest. Fund; Ongoing Financial 4 4 . ’ Effective 3 2 6
N " Skills and knowledge assessment undertaken
Management priorities may Referral to the Scheme Officer annually:
result in failure to make the Advisory Board and/or aty; . .
I . . Pension Board role to ensure compliance with
best decision for the Pension Regulator; .
X regulatory environment.
Pension Fund Legal challenge.
TOLERATE
Up to Date constitution for Pension Board and
Ineffective management of Scheme of Administration for Pension Fund
Failure of the Fund's . s i Fum_i; i Con_lmlttee;
Governance arrangements Changes in legislation that are Reputational damage; Review of Governance structures undertaken
mayv lead to ineffective implemented incorrectly; Loss of employer Chief on annual basis as part of Accounts process via
7.2 Reputation maxa ement of the Fund Failure to follow Governance confidence; Ongoing Financial 3 3 9 compliance statement; Effective 2 2
result?n in reputational arrangements. Referral to Scheme Officer Active participation and monitoring of changes
dama eg P Advisory Board and/or required from LGPS 2015. Pensions Board role
9 Pension Regulator; to support this agenda.

Legal Challenge.
TOLERATE

11 0f 12 07/09/2016



Pension Fund - Risk Register

Category

7.3 Reputation

7.4 Reputation

7.5 Reputation

G abed

12 0f 12

Causes/Triggers

Failure to appoint relevant
advisers and review their
performance may lead to
inappropriate management
of the Fund resulting from
poor advice to decision
makers

Lack of capacity of Officers to
monitor.

Delays in implementation of
decisions resulting in
reducing the effectiveness
of the decision and
potentially adversely
impacting on the ability to
maximise investment
returns

Competing priorities;
Lack of resources.

Ultra vires pension fund
actions resulting in a failure Fraudulent activity;
to manage the pension fund Lack of skills and knowledge;

properly

Consequences

Failure to achieve Pension
Fund objectives;
Inappropriate management
of the Fund resulting from
poor advice to decision
makers;

Legal challenge

Reducing the effectiveness
of the decision;

Potentially adversely
impacting on the ability to
maximise investment
returns;

Loss incurred or reduced
income received.

Failure to manage the
Pension Fund properly;
Financial loss;
Reputation damage.

Proximity | Risk Owner

Chief
Financial
Officer/Chief
Officer Human
Resources

Ongoing

Chief
Financial
Officer/Chief
Officer Human
Resources

Ongoing

Chief
Ongoing Financial
Officer

Likelihoo
d

Identify requirements of external advisers and
appoint appropriately.

TREAT

Additional Actions Required:

Implement annual review of Adviser;
Procurement of custodian for independent
performance monitoring of Fund.

Effective

Decisions minuted and appropriate staff
assigned to implement;

Agreed actions monitored by Democratic
Services;

Implementation timescales priorities according
to risk levels and available resources levels;

3 year Business Plan developed and approved
and monitored in year by Pension Fund
Committee and Board.

Partially
Effective

TREAT Delivery
of Business Plan to allow early identification
and allocation of staff resources to actions.

Training provided to Members and Officers to
ensure legal framework understood;
Use of external advisers and contact with SPPA. Effective

TOLERATE

Current Controls Control Likeliho
Assessment od

07/09/2016




Agenda Item 10a

SCOTTISH LOCAL GOVERNMENT

PENSII]N oLHEME

= ADVISORY BOARD

Annual Report 2015/16

1
555555



Scottish Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board (SAB)
Annual Report 2015/16

Opening Remarks from the Chair

On behalf of the Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board, | am
delighted to be able to present the first SAB Annual Report. The aim of this
Annual Report is to provide a primary source of information about the work of
the Board over the last financial year, 2015 — 16 for LGPS members,
employers, and other stakeholders. The Board welcomes feedback on the
information provided and how this can be developed for future reports.

More information can be found about the Board’s work at our website:
http://Igpsab.scot/

William McGonigle
Chair of SAB

Introduction

The Scottish Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) was
established under the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 to provide advice to
Scottish Government Ministers on the desirability of changes to the design of
the scheme and the implication of other policy issues.

The SAB also provides advice to the Scheme Managers or the Scheme’s
Pension Boards in relation to the effective and efficient administration and
management of the scheme.

The Scheme Advisory Board is responsible for:

* Providing advice on request about the desirability of changes to the
design of the scheme; policy issues and changes to scheme
regulations

* Discussing and commenting on the potential implications of future
valuation outcomes

* Making recommendations on adjustments to the Scheme in the
event that costs breach the employer cost cap

¢ Providing advice to the Scheme Managers or the Scheme’s
Pension Boards in relation to the effective and efficient
administration and management of the Scheme.

2
Page 56



Structure and People

The SAB is a bipartite Board comprising equal representation from employers
and employee representatives. The partnership approach is also reflected in
our administration arrangements with Joint Chairing on a rotational basis
between the two sets of representatives and a Joint Secretariat sourced from
existing resources within the Employers and Trade Union organisations.

SAB Members

Outgoing Chair (2015-16) — Clir Stewart Cree, COSLA
Incoming Chair (2016-17) — William McGonigle, Unite the Union

Clir Stewart Cree  Member (representing scheme employer interests)
Clir Alastair Rankin Member (representing scheme employer interests)
Clir John Mitchell Member (representing scheme employer interests)
Clir Jim Goodfellow Member (representing scheme employer interests)
Clir lan McAlpine  Member (representing scheme employer interests)

Brian Strathie Member (representing scheme employer interests)
Rebecca Wilson  Member (representing scheme employer interests)
Dave Watson Member (representing scheme member interests)

Stephen Smellie  Member (representing scheme member interests)
William McGonigle Member (representing scheme member interests)
Brian Gallagher Member (representing scheme member interests)

Alex McLuckie Member (representing scheme member interests)
Andy McFarlane = Member (representing scheme member interests)
Harry Frew Member (representing scheme member interests)

Joint Secretary — Employers’
Outgoing - Jane O’Donnell, COSLA
Incoming - Hayley Wotherspoon, COSLA & Jonathan Sharma, COSLA

Joint Secretary — Trade Unions
Dave Watson, UNISON

There are a number of observers and advisers who support the SAB in the
deployment of Board business. These include representatives from, and on
behalf of, the Scottish Government, formal COSLA officials, pension scheme
managers and representatives from professional associations.

Communications

The SAB have developed a bespoke website to act as a unique source of
information and advice to all stakeholders. The site includes the minutes of
SAB meetings along with other governance documentation, guidance
documents and details of the Board's membership. The content of the
website will develop as the work of the Board continues.

Similar information is also published on the local government pages of the
SPPA website - http://www.sppa.gov.uk/

3
Page 57



A short bulletin is also published after each meeting covering the key
decisions. This bulletin is circulated to key stakeholders and is available of
the SAB website.

The SAB has also issued guidance to employers and funds on a number of
issues as detailed on the workplan.

Financial report

The regulations underpinning the 2013 Act allow the SAB to collect a levy to
support its work. In the first year of operation, the SAB adopted a straight
proportion of the levy raised by our equivalent SAB in England and Wales
equating to £40,000. The SAB secretariat and support function is used from
existing resources within both employer and trade union organisations to
minimise the financial impact of our work on the public purse. During the
business year 2015-16, the SAB used these funds to support our work in data
collection and transparency and in considering the issues associated with
Fiduciary Duty. A regular financial report is considered by the SAB at each
meeting and any monies not used are held over for the following financial
year.

Valuation and Funding

The Government Actuary’s Department presented their draft actuarial
valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2014 and the Deputy First Minister
has subsequently approved this. This valuation sets the ‘employer cost cap’
that will be used to regulate the impact of future valuations on contributions
and scheme benefits. The report also looked at changes in assumptions since
2013 that the current scheme was based on. There has been a small increase
in cost due to improved life expectancy, but this is largely balanced out by a
reduction in the cost of ill health retirement.

The Board has also received presentations from scheme actuaries on current
and future funding issues and this is a standing item on the Board agenda.

4
Page 58



Highlights of 2015/16

Workplan

The Workplan drives the agenda of the Board and reflects its role in advising
both the responsible authority and Scheme Managers. During 2015/16 the
responsible authority was the Deputy First Minister, the responsibility now sits
with the Cabinet Secretary for Finance and the Constitution. The Deputy First
Minister approved the Board’s Workplan on 25 February 2016. The current
Workplan is set out in Appendix |

Data Collection Activity

The Board identified a need to improve the data available across the funds
and to develop greater consistency in the way data is presented. A scoping
exercise has been undertaken and the first report has been presented to the
Board. The Board is grateful for the support of staff at Lothian Pension Fund
for their assistance with this project.

As a result of this exercise the income and expenditure of each fund is
outlined, showing employer and employee contributions as well as benefits
payable and the value of transfers into and out of the funds. The
administrative and governance costs of the funds are also included.

As noted above, the Board has considered the Government Actuary’'s

Department (GAD) actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2014. This provides
membership experience data for the period April 2011 to March 2014.

217,644 caontnibutors
162,808 pensionears
125,317 deferred

= £28.3bn

That could be nvested in the Scottish economy
———— —_— — . —

SLLGPS Memben




The Board have also carried out a data collection exercise in relation to
membership. The Board collated from councils, who make up 75% of the
scheme membership, employee data by spinal column point and gender. A
summary table is detailed below.

Membership of the scheme is only one part of the overall picture. The Board
also needs to consider who is not in the scheme, not least for the purposes of
measuring progress against the 2015 scheme’s equality impact assessment.
The SLGPS has historically had the lowest take up of any public sector
pension scheme in Scotiand. This is primarily due to the prevalence of low
paid, part-time and women employees in local government — all factors that
generally point to a low take up of pension opportunities. While it is probably
too soon to assess the full impact of auto-enrolment, initial results indicate
that membership of the scheme is increasing, particularly amongst those
groups that have been traditionally under-represented. Further work will be
undertaken on this in the coming years.

Table 2 — 2016 Membership Levels

Actual % Comparison to 2013
Total No of Employees | 188656 100
Female 135673 71.9 ﬁ
Male 52983 28.1 f—l

Female Employees 135673 100

In Scheme 105143 77.5 ‘i}
& Under SCP 21* 22204 27.0 {J»
Male Employees 52983 100

In Scheme 43612 82.3 ﬁ
& Under SCP 21 6666 12.6 ﬁ
Not in Scheme 9371 17.7 .U,
& Under SCP 21 3572 6.7 .D

*SCP - Scale Point

Transparency of Investments

Closely linked to data collection is transparency of investments. With more
than £34bn of assets, there is an understandable interest in how contributions
are invested. There are a number of public campaigns on pension investment
activity, significant media interest and the Scottish Parliament's Local
Government and Regeneration Committee looked at the scheme last year as
part of its inquiry into infrastructure investment.

The Board has published a breakdown by broad asset class of current
investments in each fund and for the scheme in total. This shows how much is

Pagse 60



invested in bonds, equities, property and alternative investments. This
information is availabie at Appendix |l (additional spreadsheet). The Board
recognises that there is a demand for a more detailed breakdown into types of
investment, particularly those in controversial areas. There are significant
challenges in collecting this data, not least because there are few agreed
definitions. The Board will continue to examine this issue and identify what
further measures can be taken to improve transparency.

In addition to transparency over where the assets are invested, the Board has
also responded to growing interest in transparency of investment fees. The
new CIPFA guidance has made some progress in gaining a better
understanding of investment fees — resulting in the appearance of significantly
increased investment fees in some funds. The Board also received a
presentation from Dr Chris Siers on this issue, highlighting the need for
common industry standards on reporting transaction costs. Our colleagues in
England and Wales are also looking closely at this issue.

Fiduciary Duty

The Board recognises the desire for pension funds to invest in infrastructure
and respond to public concern over certain types of investment, including, but
not limited to, fossil fuels. These concerns were also reflected in the Scottish
Parliament’s Local Government and Regeneration Committee report.

One of the considerations pensions funds have to take into account is their
fiduciary duty to beneficiaries and scheme employers. This is a complex area
of law and therefore the Board has commissioned a detailed legal opinion on
this issue. The Board will be giving further consideration to this advice and
aims to issue guidance to funds.

The Board has also recommended changes to the investment regulations to
give funds greater flexibility over where funds can be invested. Parliament has
now approved increases to the investment limits as an interim measure. The
Board will retum to this issue in the coming year with the aim of
recommending long-term changes to the current somewhat prescriptive
regulations.

Please note: This guidance has now been issued (July 2016)

Cessation Valuations

The SAB has considered representations from some Community Admission
Bodies who are concerned that recent cessation valuations may place their
organisations in jeopardy. The Deputy First Minister also asked the Board to
give consideration to this issue. The board is sympathetic to these concerns
while recognising that it would be unreasonable to expect other employers to
meet the cost of these payments.

Funds have not changed the way they have dealt with this issue and have

been prepared to be as flexible as possible by spreading the costs over a
period of time. The SPPA has collated data from funds on the potential risks

7
Page 61



and the initial data report does not indicate any major concerns. The board
will therefore consider further guidance to funds on this issue.

Structure Review

Following the data collection exercise, the Board will begin a structural review
of the funds in Scotland. In recent years COSLA and UNISON have
commissioned separate studies into the benefits of merging the eleven funds
or adopting shared services. The UK government has also announced the
pooling of fund investments in England and Wales into what they describe as
‘British Wealth Funds’. These pools would be of a similar size to a combined
fund in Scotland.

The Board is to consider a scoping paper on the review that will set out a
methodology and timescale for the review.

Please note: The Board considered a scoping paper on this at their May 2016
meeting. A sub group has now been establish and will meet for the first time
in August 2016 to progress this work.

Regulations

The new SLGPS has only been in operation for a year and there have been a
small number of issues identified that may require regulation changes or
revised guidance. The Board has been giving regular consideration to these
matters and will keep the benefit regulations under review. As identified
above, changes have been made to the investment reguiations.

Future Work

The Board has and will continue to progress the areas set out above. In
addition the Board will be undertaking a review of the 50:50 option as agreed
when the new scheme was adopted. The Board will also contribute to the
review of governance arrangements across all the public sector pension
schemes in Scotland later this year.

8
Page 62



‘G10¢
1snBny Ul uospaqoy
SUBWAH Aq papiaoud

uoissas Buiuiel |

‘puBpOOS
Ul S497 oY) Joj senss

‘oA
puny je pue Ajjeuoneu sjoeduwl
SIY} MOY pue sWBYyog L} uiyim

ETETRLS)
UOISUBY JUBWIUIBAOL)
|eoo] oy

Buipuny jje 48A02 [|Im WiBY SIy | Bulpuny} Jo 8NSSI O} JSPISUOD O] loy senss| Buipung | o
"Hodal uoISSILWOD MET
Wwa2a1 sy} Buipnpoul ‘uoluido
puUB 82UdPIAS JUD23I JO "aouepinb s1eudoidde
unoooe Bupey ‘Ainp Aeionpy 1apIsuod pue §497 Ysnoog
Uo swayog sy} ssooe ay] Jo sjaag| ||e je Aidde Aoy se
GL0Z YdJe L€ | palinbal Ji eouepinG spiaocid o] | sennp ABionply ulew auy) malAsl o) Ang Aueonpi4 G
‘aAOge se ‘ao1oeld
8i0jalay) pue Z Wa)| | 1s9q s)09|jal SIY) Jey] 84NSus 0) "SUOISIDOP JUSLUISAAUI 0) uolje|al
Japun as|olaxa Jo pUE S]S0D JUSLIISDAUI punode | ul Spun4 sy} ssosoe Aousiedsuel) SIUSLUSBAU|
Med se soe|d e} 0] Aousiedsues) uo aoueping anosdwil 0} MOY JSpPISUOD O} 10 Aousiedsuel| | ¥
910z Jeqwaydag 0O¢
"(Z) ®A0Qe | "BSIoieX® Ml BU) JO S)NSaI | "SJDT YSINOIS SU) JO S4njonas oy}
pajou as|aiexe ejep ay) Buiuipno pieog AlosiApy 10 MBIA) B 8)8|dwoD 0] ‘asI10lexs
8y} uo Jepuadag SWayog ay} wouj Jodsl ¥ | U0I}09||00 BIEP B} WO, BuImo|jo- MBIASY aINPNiS | ¢
"Spuny UoIsusd
"Spuny [enplalpul AQ pajos|iod | JUSWUISAOS) [BO0T YSI}I00g SS0loe ejeq
Blep uo uoneuuojul Buipiroid | ejep Jo uoi109]|09 By} JapiSuoD (M | pund Jo ASus)sISuoD
9102 Mdv ,0¢ asiolexa BupjlelIyousq v | YdIym Miom jo Apog e 1no adoas 0] pue uopoa|on | ¢
"8|04 S)I N0 Aled
‘preog 9y} Jo | 0] palinbal yiom Juswdoansp sy
Jyiom sy} poddns o) paelbe s punj o0} pJjeog A10SIADY BWaYosg wsiueyssw
‘G0 Jsquiedaqg (Le | Yyoeoudde Aas| pesibe ue jey | | sy} moje 0} Wisiueyosw & saibe o AnaT Bulpung L
a1eq uons|dwon paiinbay indino uondussaq 9|l | ON

9102/S510Z ue|dydopr GYS 9yl - | Xxjpuaddy

Page 63



oL

Jsoje|

8y} je G1L0¢ sunr

40€ 15966ns pjnom
anss| punoJe Aouabin
‘Buiobuo

S| YoIym asi1olexe
uo1198}|00 elep

YddS Wnoooe ol
8)e} p|inoys as1215xg

"Spun4 Joj souepinb sonoe.d
poob (z pue mainsal uonenbal
(1 UO JUBWILIBAOS) YSINOOS
pue gys Agq uonelapisuoo

10} seale om) ale alay) jey |

SUOIIEN|BA UOIJESSSD U0

AYAloR JUSDal JO JnNsal e se pasiel
sisjjew Jo sbuel e JopISUod 0|

M3IADY uonenbay
pue asueping
:uofjenjeA uolessaD

‘wey
epuabe piepur)s

Page 64



buipuess e aq ||m Wa) siy L

Jey) aInsus o} Way buipuels v JO MaIADY LL
‘sl1apjoyayels e
ypm Ajoanoaye Bunesiunwiwiod paJinba. aleym spuny
ale pieog sy} 1ey) 10} aosuepinb uo pue siaquiaL
2INSUs [|IM pue wal Bunesw JoJ suolesiuNwWwod uc Absiens ABeyensg
Buipue)s e eq |im way siy L aleudoisdde ue sopisuod 0| SUONEDIUNWIWOYD Ol
aleosawl |

pajedionuy palinbay IndinQ uonduassq 8JUl | ON

‘sepuaby Bunesp paeog uo swaey| Bulpuelg mou swiay| uejdyiop jewbLo

'SdO1

ay} uiypm sjuswsbuene "SS9UBAILOBYS sjuswabuele
92UBUIBA0D ||B JO MBIAD. 10} pamaiAal 8g 0} UOIIN)ISUOD aoueuiarob
"210Z Yoy Lg [nyjBulueaw e 1oL mojje o [opow BunsIxs sy} 10} moje 0| JO MalneY | 01
‘des 1s00 ey uo
Joedw| Aue uo aaape apiaold pue
'9SI018X8 Uolen|eA | 9SI1219X8 UOIBN|BA JuD2ai 1SOW By}
Juaoal sy) Wol) spun4 0 sindino sy} uo pieog AIOSIAPY de)
AQ pspircid uonewIojul 8y} | BWayds sy Lol jim odal Qv 1809 uo Joedw| pue
G10Z 19QUISAON (g | JOpISUoD 0} pleog ay) mojje o Agasaym we) epuabe |eluusu] Y | SSWONO) UOHENBA | 6
ETETRIS
BU} UIUNIM JBJ0 0G.05 8U)
Jo Joedwi sy Jo uonelspIsuod ‘sWsyog ay) uiynum uondo 05:08
‘9102 sunp InyBulueaw e Joj mojje o 3y} JO 1oedull 8y} 8SIURNIOS O] Malnal uondo 0G:0G 8
ETEREENT
pajedionuy pasnbay nding uonduoseq 9L | ON

Page 65



cl

TG
Jeip ul asoy} 10 suonenbal
Bunsixa o) asuodsal

S pleog sy} 108184/uo)ul
[lIm pue way Bunssw

"osodind oy 3 ale
pue uonesibej 1099|421 suopejnbal

suoneinboy

Page 66



———— — R
EET'STL'VE ¥ET'79 SETEVE'Z  (5B'9BT 962'9SL'ST  $E8'L9E  OELPST SZT'SKS EET'EST SVETLT'E  TEZ'90T'S  18L'SHE PEL'BPP'T  88%°0€3'T  9FEGRLT  ZSP'TIL 019’68
8SE'STT - 25 - EELTL - T - Dit'sr - £S9'T - 9z - B9E'T - LT 850'TZ SBTGT - ¥E - BEE'R T98'5 - 1ee7 - EvE 082 -
PLEE - +1 - - 09’ -
9Lz'es - g5 - EELTT - 8592 - pI8 -1 - s¥ - LT 0LT'PL S8T'E B 711 - BEE' T8ET - 0T -
668'TT - G6E'TT -
19T'T - ar - [1) 2 S - 6
TS0y - ZSL'ER - -6 - 858 - 8gR'e £6L'E - &L - 1057 - 9T - vET EST -
09§'6TZ ZIET vis'oL £LTT 6BSZR £0E'E 6197 S9C'T £E8T £19'61T TLH'TS S9B'E F2S'ET vI6's TOE'TT THT 52V
990°LT T3 £9 6TZ Z5€'9 ET'T £
IE'R
LPE'90T SSET OveT ] TEE'L 324 BEL'T % s 05E'9¢ sz70'¢ TS6'EL P56'T BZL'E T
£ 4 e
z9e'vT T vt g iz EH 969'T £99°TT 09T Jid zis's 9E0'E 671 £T 96€
6L9'E 185 01T 2827
£€9L'f9 9 £06°L BET PES'EE L6E°T 16 58 600'g 8592 682 ¥ERT 619 jifad 8z
28tz 174 EEZ S9E 298 1733
EVLRTIPE [EE] PEUWPRT  PE'SSL  LI0'Z24'ST  8BU'99E  L90ZSL  DoWbYS  IISI9Z  ZGDILLE  VESCi0S  E9T7eE  TOLEEFl  SEPeerT  TOUTeLT 095 TIL  Ti0er
£65'F9LT [T T96'6T 0£9°81 E6L'SES 11§ - osp'a 9L’ L1038 04ZTTY SO8'TT TTEQT TiT'68 6409 oLy 68T -
TI6EY 04t g98'E - 095°4T ELL'OT (3 31E s s
188 -
SEO'pEE T 00L £60°9T 0£9'2T 089'6ES 118 ask's AL £5¢'09 LEP'C0Y Te80z vo0'sT 24169 6TL09 BI8'T EEL -
£TT6T 6 - SPSE - - SIS'T - - ZE0T 008'62 - 473 i ! - - -
SSS'E N By
SSS°E
99957 6 4 ot - SIS'T - ZE0'T 00862 (434
965ERO'Y 28LTL aTv'ipl LTLTICT  s6I%0T - SIE'E6 198'8C E00'SST  ZEB'9SI  £5v'ST BIT'LE YOY'TPL'T  weC'OSE 8449 -
£10°686 8L £2T9TL [144'H SI8'E6 695'ZT TwE's FITROL
0E0°TLS €0T'TE ros'ol 9982 L5950 Sp0'902 18479
Fre'er LTE'ET LT
562'02 2088 [1xarad
£69'ST £68°ST
9Z8'T01 STETOT
802'TH 28967 9559 0T6'LE 08041
Tz6"SYE 266'RE 070 6E0TST SI6'L 306'9F
60L66 898'45 29 61Z'LE
TEZL9S'T EETRLTT PIFEET SES9ET Gr'se
ETSVEL'E 015’y 8TFI0E - IT0LT 787’8 548t THY'8T - 096'TTT PI6'56E TOEvE 055087 £0£'B5T 9E8°92T TIrRY -
9E3‘vOt Tr6'rTE - SPLGL -
EEETIE 0TSy BZYPOE 782'3E 759'82 T0ZvE assorT EOL'BIT 9ES'PET T4K89
POS'LT6T 002Z'6LET SLB'L 096°TTZ 69T'9TE - O0ET
DIE'ETITZ STETE 950°8T0'Z B6S'6L ITSTEEDT 709’78z 9ty £TL'65E ZBST6T POO'bSY'Z  SEFPOT'E  999°TEZ 09T'959 FLS'962 Z66'8/0'T SHETISY £ST'ZS
0FZ'198°L 289 TEE'L0L 26561 05T'960'y TI9'zy L9857 T86'680°T 091952 - tetoBE 0260V 6I1ZS
OET'9BL'ET BEI0E PILOTET 99T'IER'S  Zo9TTL L1L'BEE STZ'BRT ETOPOET  BEPWSTE  99%1EL ¥IS'96Z BPe'889 STLTS ¥
trrsIre STOTE 8/9'68% - S5Z'TZ6T - T8STOT __ Tre'es SSERE SYS'P9T  DEERIF  8ED6D EYIELS  TEB'IST  TZTRLT  ISYOTT [0TE
aTvsy vSE'ELL §59'ST - 85 S¥Y'ST SZS'TET - TES'SY
BGE'EELT 605°TL SOT'STE 008'£0LT TIETT - 089'0€ [£1:73 08E'LZ LTI - OELROT 65§
929'g9g 768'9 §82°16 Ir 9575 PLEBT 159'88¢ 602'ET 750'8E 526°TT £ZY'PE
BLL'ELS 195 SRIEL £96°6%8 EZ5'462 6L9'SZT 08L'PTT 098'8T EEGPE ¥BY'T
0003 200F 0007 0003 000F 000F 00037 0003 000F 0007 0003 0003 000¥ 0003 0003 0003 0003
STOZ/EQ/TE STOZ/E0/LE STOZ/E0/TE STOZ/ED/TE STOZ/EO/IE SIDZ/EO/IE STOZ/EQ/TE STOZ/€0/1E STOZ/ED/TE STOZ/E0/TE STOZ/EGC/TE STOZ/€O/IE STOZ/EO/IE STOZ/EO/TE STOZ/EQ/TE STOZ/EO/TE
W01 SNVHLAYL A¥L  EONLHIS 1VH1S L3Hs 1dHs auos N0 143N id1 §3IENRAT HBIH I AENIYY SBANG NvHL-yIaY

STOZ YU TE 30 purty 2u3 jo sjosse 18N

- 5|Ie)ap apinoad Isesg
SIBYIn
sasuadxy/s/0paI) SNOSUE|RSIY
23UBAPY U) Sucynguey
JHIWH
ajqeAey s1ysuag €T 10eIm

- S|lz3ap Ipinoid 3sed)d

1410

@IUL(eq yse

sawiedaly

5J0143Q AJpLNS

Punj uo ulens

anp suonnguILeg
F[assy Juang

- speap apiaosd aseald
slayan
QEel] JURLIN) UON

- sjiejap apjacad asead
siayig
3555y JUSLIny UaN

SL135SY LNIWLSIANI ANNY L3N

- 5{1E13p apwosd aseald
s1alo
ysed

T {583 5 560

Sinajen

- sjielap ap|acud aseald

i

SPIBAUDS AJUDLIND
TTANEATTE]

- sjigiap apiacad asea)d

sByo

{n/d) puny aBpsy

(d1} puny 38pay

[Ald) UIN1EY 230j0sgY/YIMEIS PELISIBAIG
[A1d) 1930 s1eALY

{d1)3920 18814
{Ald} sampowwios
{d1} seipowwos
(A1d) 2an3ansespu)
[d7) 2an33n1)5E1)U)
(A1d) b3 sreang
{dN] Aunb3 eAuy

{d7) Awedoly
(A1) Anadoud
Apatdoly pang

Agadoig

(Ard) Aainba

{Ald) saiNoEs pasun xapu)
[Ald) s2l3noas 3524230) paxly
$313l4nJ3s payul xapu|
Sandag 3s31Au] paxy

SIio/spuag

S| 7 S1asSY JuRLIsIAL]

STOZ Y2IeW ISTE 18 SE JUnoddy 51assy 13y :papuaddy

Page 67



Page 68



Agenda Item 10b

Trade Union Side Secretary | Employers Side Secretary k\\
Dave Watson Hayley Wotherspoon &

Scheme
- UnggN Jonathan Sharma
UNISON House COSLA
Adv I so ry 14 West Campbell St Verity House, 19 Haymarket Yards

Glasgow G2 6RX Edinburgh EH12 5BH

Scottish Local Government

Pension Scheme
Tel: 0141 342 2840 Tel: 0131 474 9269
WwWWw. Igpsab'SCOt B oa rd d.watson@unison.co.uk

hayley.woiherspoon@cosla.gov.uk/,‘

June 2016

BULLETIN

Structure Review

The SAB considered a scoping paper for the structural review of LGPS pension funds in
Scotland. The paper set out the background to the review and the previous reports that
have looked at the options for merging or sharing services between the eleven funds. The
paper also updated the SAB on the pooling of investment funds in England and Wales.

It was agreed to establish a working group to take forward the review with the aim of
producing an options report by December 2016.

Fiduciary Duty

The SAB considered covering guidance to the legal opinion commissioned on the issue of
fiduciary duty on SLGPS funds. The trade union side believes the tone of the opinion is too
negative and further work will be undertaken to reflect these concerns in the covering
guidance.

Cessation Valuations

The SPPA has undertaken a data collection exercise to establish the scale of potential
risks arising from admission bodies that have no guarantor. It was agreed to recommend
that amendments to Regulation 62(2) and 62(5) of the LGPS (Scotland) Regulations
should be considered by Scottish Government and agreed the key points to be included in
a good practice guidance from the SAB.

Scheme Governance

When the new governance arrangements were introduced it was agreed that there would
be a review after two years. The SPPA has started the process for a review of scheme
governance arrangements across all public sector pension schemes in Scotland. This will
include an independent reviewer and consultation with all the stakeholders. The review will
report in February 2017.

People

Harry Frew from UCATT was the SAB Vice-Chair and he will be standing down following
his retirement later this month. Jane O’Donnell is moving to a new role in COSLA and
Hayley Wotherspoon and Jonathan Sharma will take over as Employers Side Secretary.
The SAB thanked Harry and Jane for their contribution to the new board’s work.

Willie McGonigle from Unite was elected as the new Chair of the SAB. In the recent
Cabinet appointments, Derek McKay MSP is the new pensions minister.

SAB Website
The new SAB website (http://lgpsab.scot) to improve communications with stakeholders is
now operating.

Page 69


http://lgpsab.scot/

This page is intentionally left blank



Sppa Agenda Item 11

SCOTTISH PUBLIC PENSIONS AGENCY

7 Tweedside Park
Tweedbank
GALASHIELS
TD1 3TE

WWW.Sppa.gov.uk

To: Tel: 01896 893000
The Scottish Local Government Pension Board Fax: 01896 893214

Chad.dawtry@gov.scot

Our ref: SPPA Governance

25t August 2016

Dear Colleague

| am writing to make you aware of a forthcoming Review of the effectiveness of the operation of
the governance arrangements introduced under the Public Service Pensions Act 2013.

At the time the new arrangements were established, the Scottish Government committed to
review them within two years. Attached at Annex A are draft Terms of Reference for the Review,
for your consideration and comment. As you will see the Terms are necessarily relatively high-
level. For the avoidance of doubt, however, we will expect the Independent Reviewer to use a
range of methods to ensure coverage of detailed issues. Please bear this in mind when
considering the draft.

As the timetable for the Review is reasonably tight, | would be grateful if you could provide any
comments you may have on the draft Terms to Lorraine Gallagher (Lorraine.Gallagher@gov.scot)
copied to Lorimer Mackenzie (lorimer.mackenzie@gov.scot) by mid-September 2016.

Yours sincerely

Chad Dawtry
Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Policy, SPPA

An agency of }v The Scottish Government
N

Riaghaltas na h-Alba
a‘ ﬁ X, 8 8 Page 71


http://www.sppa.gov.uk/
mailto:Lorraine.Gallagher@gov.scot
mailto:lorimer.mackenzie@gov.scot

sppa

SCOTTISH PUBLIC PENSIONS AGENCY

Annex A

REVIEW OF THE OPERATION OF GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS
INTRODUCED UNDER THE PUBLIC SERVICE PENSIONS ACT 2013
FOR SCOTLAND’S
LOCAL GOVERNMENT, NHS, TEACHERS’, POLICE AND FIREFIGHTERS’

PENSION SCHEMES

TERMS OF REFERENCE

An agency of P4 The Scottish Government
A

Riaghaltas na h-Alba
a‘ ﬁ X, 8 8 Page 72



sppa

SCOTTISH PUBLIC PENSIONS AGENCY

Introduction

1.  New governance arrangements were introduced in Scotland from 1 April 2015 under the
Public Service Pensions Act 2013 (the Act). These were built around a number of recommendations
made by the Independent Public Services Commission. As well as new duties for the Pensions
Regulator, they resulted in greater clarity around public service pension scheme accountabilities
and required the creation of Scheme Advisory Boards and Pension Boards for Scotland’'s NHS,
Teachers’, Police Firefighters’ and Local Government pension schemes.

2.  The Act prescribed certain requirements, including:

2.1 Scheme Advisory Boards must exist to advise the responsible authority, at the authority's
request, on the desirability of changes to the scheme.

(Note: The responsible authority for the governance arrangements in the scope of this
review are the Scottish Ministers, with the Cabinet Secretary for Finance and the
Constitution operating as Scotland’s Minister for public service pensions.)

2.2 Pension Boards must exist to assist the scheme manager with securing compliance with:
i) the scheme regulations and other legislation relating to the governance and
administration of the scheme; ii) requirements imposed by the Pensions Regulator; iii)
any other requirements specifically set out in scheme regulations.

(Note: the scheme manager for the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) is the
relevant local fund authority (of which there are eleven) and is the Scottish Ministers,
delegated to the SPPA, for the NHS, Teachers’ Police and Firefighters’ pension
schemes.)

2.3 Pension Boards must include “employer representatives and member representatives in
equal numbers”.

3. The Scottish Government had discretion as to who should serve on the boards, broadly what
business boards should conduct, when and where they should meet and, in the case of the locally
managed LGPS, how many Pension Boards there should be. Five Scheme Advisory Boards were
established (one for each scheme above) and fifteen Pension Boards (eleven for the distributed
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) and one each for the other four pension schemes). As
public service pension policy advisers to the Scottish Government, the Scottish Public Pensions
Agency (SPPA) oversaw the development and delivery of these new arrangements though the
terms of reference for and composition of the Scheme Advisory Boards and Pension Boards were
agreed in partnership (SPPA/employer/trades unions).

4. Across Scotland, around two hundred and fifty people are directly involved as members of
these various boards. Others will be actively involved in the preparation and presentation of papers
to boards (in some cases these will already exist, but some will be specifically created for board
consideration) and in providing secretariat services. With boards typically meeting around four
times/year, this represents a significant human resource investment. In 2015, on Ministers’ behalf,
the SPPA committed to review the effectiveness of the operation of the new arrangements within
two years of their introduction. It has been agreed that the review should be carried-out by suitably
skilled and knowledgeable independent resource to ensure that improvements are reflective of: i)
wider best practice; and ii) stakeholders’ ability to fully reflect on what has and has not worked well.

An agency of P4 The Scottish Government
A

Riaghaltas na h-Alba
a‘ ﬁ X, 8 8 Page 73


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2013/25/contents
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/independent-public-service-pensions-commission-final-report-by-lord-hutton
http://www.sppa.gov.uk/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=949&Itemid=1633
http://www.sppa.gov.uk/index.php?option=com_content&view=article&id=948&Itemid=1632

sppa

SCOTTISH PUBLIC PENSIONS AGENCY

Objectives

5.  The objectives of this Review are:

5.1 to review the effectiveness of the operation of the Scheme Advisory Boards and Pension
Boards set up in Scotland under the Act in light of:

5.1.1 the requirements of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 (including, but not

restricted to, s. 5(3) on the effective and efficient governance and administration
of the scheme);

5.1.2 the recommendations of the Final Report of the Independent Public Service

Pensions Commission;

5.1.3 other legislative requirements or formal guidance, for example, The Pensions

Regulator’ Code of Practice No. 14;

5.1.4 good practice in the operation of relevant comparator governance arrangements;

5.1.5 lessons learned in the first year of operation of these governance arrangements, in

particular (but not exclusively):

the quality of board member induction and continuous development, specifically in
relation to the requirement for Pension Board members to have sufficient
knowledge and understanding to fulfil their role;

clarity of Board purpose and collective (Board) and individual roles and
responsibilities;

the adequacy of scheme member representation (active, deferred, pensioner and
prospective scheme members);

the diversity of Board membership;

the effectiveness of board management & administration;
the leadership, chairing and conduct of meetings;

the frequency and location of meetings.

5.2 by 31 December 2016, to prepare a detailed report of related conclusions, options and
recommendations on how to optimise the value of existing governance arrangements;

5.3 by 28 February 2017, to provide advice and recommendations to Ministers on how to
optimise the value of existing governance arrangements and how to communicate any
related changes;

5.4 by 30 April 2017, to initiate the necessary changes in governance arrangements desired
by Ministers.

a«ﬁxsg Page 74

An agency of P4 The Scottish Government
. Riaghaltas na h-Alba



sppa

SCOTTISH PUBLIC PENSIONS AGENCY

Scope
6. This Review covers:

6.1 The composition and operation of the Scheme Advisory Boards for Scotland’s NHS,
Teachers’, Police, Firefighters’ and Local Government pension schemes and related
governance arrangements including, for example, interaction around approved Work
Plans.

6.2 It is noted, in particular, that the Work Plan for the LGPS Scheme Advisory Board includes
a structural review of the LGPS. Work is already underway to scope and initiate that
review, subject to its detailed approval by the Cabinet Secretary for Finance and the
Constitution. To the extent that that specific review bears on this review, it is within the
scope of this review.

6.3 The composition and operation of the Pension Boards for Scotland’s NHS, Teachers’,
Police and Firefighters’ pension schemes and related governance arrangements.

6.4. The composition and operation of the eleven Pension Boards for the LGPS in Scotland
and related governance arrangements.

6.5 Interaction and communication between:
6.5.1 the various boards on an intra-scheme basis;

6.5.2 the various boards and related governance arrangements (for example, the
relationship between the Pension Boards for Scotland’s NHS, Teachers’, Police
and Firefighters’ pension schemes and the SPPA’s Corporate Board and the
relationship between the Police Scheme Advisory Board and the Police
Negotiating Board for Scotland);

6.5.3 the various boards and respective scheme stakeholders;

6.5.4 Scheme Advisory Boards and SPPA policy officials, who are responsible for
advising Ministers on public service pensions policy, including the views of the
Scheme Advisory Boards;

6.5.5 Pension Boards and officials engaged in the day-to-day management of the
pension scheme in question.

Exclusions
7. The following are excluded from the scope of the Review:

7.1 Other than under 3.5.1.2, the operation of the SPPA’s Corporate Board and Audit & Risk
Committee.

7.2 [Add other relevant exclusions]

An agency of P4 The Scottish Government
A

Riaghaltas na h-Alba
a‘ ﬁ X, 8 8 Page 75



sppa

SCOTTISH PUBLIC PENSIONS AGENCY

Deliverables

8. Deliverables will include:

8.1

8.2
8.3

8.4
8.5
8.6
8.7

procurement of an independent resource to lead the review and achieve objectives 3.1.1
and 3.1.2 (by end August 2016);

a finalised terms of reference for the review (by end September 2016);

a method statement and project plan, setting-out how the contractor will approach the
review, including a formal plan for the engagement of key stakeholders in the review (by
end September 2016), including:

8.3.1 a formal plan for the participation of key stakeholders in the review, covering, for
example, taking evidence and attribution/anonymity;

8.3.2 aformal plan for the use of related research.

a final report of review findings (by end December 2016);

presentations of findings to Scheme Advisory Boards (by end January 2017);
summary policy advice to Scottish Ministers (by end February 2017);
communication on resultant decisions taken (by end April 2017).

Project approach

9. The Review will be managed in line with Scottish Government guidance on Managing
Successful Projects.

10. The Senior Responsible Officer for the Review will be the SPPA’s Deputy Chief Executive,
who is also Director of Policy.

11. The Project Manager will be SPPA’s Deputy Director of Policy, who will also be responsible for
deliverables 8.6 and 8.7.

OLﬁXSS Page 76

ends

An agency of P4 The Scottish Government
. Riaghaltas na h-Alba



Agenda Item 15

Document is Restricted

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 16

Document is Restricted

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 17a

Document is Restricted

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 17b

Document is Restricted

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 17c

Document is Restricted

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 18

Document is Restricted

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 19

Document is Restricted

Page 139



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Minute
	5 Strategic Investment Review
	Item No. 5 - Strategic Investment Review - Appendix 1
	Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund
	Introduction
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Appendix
	1. Current strategy
	3b. 50% Equity strategy
	Long Lease Property
	Direct lending
	Semi-liquid credit
	Risk warnings
	Slide Number 15

	Item No. 5 - Strategic Investment Review - Appendix 2
	Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund
	How much should we hedge?
	Risk management and correlations
	What are the costs?
	Current conditions
	Slide Number 6


	7 Risk Register Update
	Item No. 7 - Risk Register - Appendix 1

	10a Annual Report
	10b June Bulletin
	11 Public Service Pension Act 2013 - Governance Review Consultation
	15 Minute
	16 Pension Fund Appointment Sub-Group
	17a Private Minute of 24 August 2015
	17b Private Minute of 22 February 2016
	17c Private Minute of 22 August 2016
	18 Quarter Performance Update
	19 Custodian Procurement

